Public Document Pack

Penallta House, Ty Penalita, ‘
Tredomen Park, Parc Tredomen,
¥strad Mynach, Ystrad Mynach, c A E R pﬂl '. LY
Hengoed CF82 7PG Hengoed CF82 7PG ENNGOR BWRDEISTIREE SINGL
www.caerphilly.gov.uk
www.caerffili.gov.uk
For all enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Amy Dredge
(Tel: 01443 863100 Email: dredga@caerphilly.gov.uk)
Date: 17th February 2016
Dear Sir/Madam,

A meeting of the Education for Life Scrutiny Committee will be held in the Sirhowy Room, Penallta
House, Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach on Tuesday, 23rd February, 2016 at 5.30 pm to consider the
matters contained in the following agenda.

Yours faithfully,

Chris Burns
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE
AGENDA

Pages
1 To receive apologies for absence.
2 Declaration of interest
Councillors and Officers are reminded of their personal responsibility to declare any personal
and/or prejudicial interest(s) in respect of any item of business on this agenda in accordance
with the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Code of Conduct for
both Councillors and Officers.

To approve and sign the following minutes: -

3 Special Education for Life Scrutiny Committee held on the 15th December 2015 (min nos. 1-6).
1-12

4 Education for Life Scrutiny Committee held on 12th January 2016 (min nos. 1-12).

A greener place Man gwyrddach

iz 4 &

1 [V




13-18

5 Consideration of any matter referred to this Committee in accordance with the call-in procedure.
6 To receive a verbal report from the Cabinet Member for Education and Lifelong Learning.
7 To receive and consider the following Cabinet Reports*: -

Community Centres Task and Finish Group — 20th January 2016.
Junior and Youth Forum Priorities 2016 — 3rd February 2016.

*If a member of the Scrutiny Committee wishes for any of the above Cabinet reports to be brought
forward for review at the meeting please contact Amy Dredge, 01443 863100, by 10.00 a.m. on
Monday, 22nd February 2016.

To receive and consider the following Scrutiny reports: -
8 Communities First Pupil Deprivation Grant Match Fund Projects - Youth Workers in Schools and

Family Support Project (Joint Working between Communities First and Schools) Report and
Presentation.

19-44
9 Consultation - Proposed Admission Arrangements 2017/2018.
45 - 58
10 Education Capital 2016/17.
59 - 64
11 Key Stage 4 / Key Stage 5 Performance 2015.
65-76
12 Flying Start Programme Impact Report and Presentation.
77 - 106
13 To record any requests for an item to be included on the next available agenda.
To receive and note the following information items™: -
14 Lansbury Project - Education Focus Group Report.
107 - 118

*If a member of the Scrutiny Committee wishes for any of the above information reports to be brought
forward for discussion at the meeting please contact Amy Dredge, 01443 863100, by 10.00 a.m. on
Monday, 22nd February 2016.

Circulation:

Councillors J. Bevan, P.J. Bevan, Mrs A. Blackman, W. David (Chair), H.R. Davies, C.J. Gordon,
D. Havard, M.P. James, G. Johnston, Mrs G.D. Oliver, D.W.R. Preece, J. Pritchard (Vice Chair),
J.A. Pritchard, J.E. Roberts, R. Saralis, Mrs M.E. Sargent and J. Simmonds



Co-opted Members:

Cardiff ROC Archdiocesan Commission for Education Representative (with voting rights on
educational matters)

Mr M. Western

Parent Governor Representatives (with voting rights on educational matters) Mr A. Farina-Childs and
Mrs A. Goss

Outside Body Representatives (without voting rights)
Mr P. Jones (NAHT), Mrs J. Havard (NUT), Mrs P. Ireland (NUT) and Mr J. Short (NASUWT)

Caerphilly Governors Association (without voting rights)
Mrs S. Evans (Caerphilly Governors Association)

And Appropriate Officers



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

A Y
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIE
CYNGDR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

SPECIAL EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE, YSTRAD MYNACH
ON TUESDAY, 15TH DECEMBER 2015 AT 5.30 P.M.

PRESENT:
Councillor W. David - Chair
Councillor J. Pritchard - Vice-Chair
Councillors:

Mrs A. Blackman, J. Bevan, P.J. Bevan, H.R. Davies, C. Gordon, D. Havard, M.P.
James, G. Johnston, J.E. Roberts, R. Saralis.

Cabinet Member for Education and Leisure: R. Passmore.

Together with:

C. Burns (Interim Chief Executive), K. Cole (Chief Education Officer), B. Hopkins
(Assistant Director for Education), S. Richards (Principal Finance Officer, Education),
J. Southcombe (Financial Services Manager) C. Forbes-Thompson (Scrutiny
Manager), A. Dredge (Committee Services Officer).

Also Present:

Co-opted Members: Mr A. Farina-Childs (Parent Governor), Mrs A Goss (Parent
Governor), Mrs G Havard (NUT), Mr M. Western.

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors C. Durham, Mrs G. Oliver,
D.W.R. Preece, M.E. Sargent. Mrs P.J. Ireland (NUT).

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
At the commencement of the meeting, and with reference to the item on Community
Centres Councillors J Bevan, P.J. Bevan, Mrs A. Blackman, W. David (Chair), H.R.
Davies, D. Havard, G. Johnston, declared an interest. In that the interest was

personal the Members were able to stay and take part in the discussion and voting
thereon) Details are minuted with the respective items.

Page 1



Clarification was sought with regard to declarations of interest as it was felt that most
Members would have some form of interest in these items whether personally,
professionally, through a family member or friend. Members were advised that as the
items presented were only being discussed in general terms as part of the
consultation process they should declare the interest but would not be precluded
from taking an active part in the discussions. It is a matter for the individual Member
as to whether they wished to declare an interest and leave the meeting.

WELCOME

The Chair welcomed Chris Burns, (Interim Chief Executive) to his first Education for
Life Scrutiny Committee.

REPORTS OF OFFICERS

Consideration was given to the following reports.

UPDATED MEDIUM-TERM FINANCIAL PLAN AND DRAFT SAVINGS
PROPOSALS FOR 2016/17

Chris Burns (Interim Chief Executive) presented the report, which provided Members
with an overview of the updated Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) and draft
2016/17 savings proposals that were presented to Cabinet on the 14th October 2015,
and summarised the 2016/17 savings proposals for the Education and Lifelong
Learning Directorate with an updated MTFP for Schools.

Members were reminded that on 25th February 2015 Council approved the Medium-
Term Financial Plan (MTFP) that showed a potential savings requirement of
£14.030m for the 2016/17 financial year and £12.105m for 2017/18. This position
assumed a 3.4% cut for both years in the Aggregate External Finance (Revenue
Support Grant (RSG) and Redistributed Non-Domestic Rates) funding received from
the Welsh Government (WG). The UK Government has undertaken a
Comprehensive Spending Review in recent months and it is anticipated that the
financial outlook for Local Government in Wales will inevitably worsen, which will be
exacerbated by the likelihood of WG continuing to offer a degree of protection to the
NHS.

This Spending Review has resulted in a delay in the announcement of the WG
2016/17 Provisional Local Government Financial Settlement and this was expected
on the 9th December 2015. However, as cuts are likely to be deeper than originally
anticipated, the MTFP has now been revised to reflect a reduction in the Aggregate
External Finance (AEF) of 4.3% for 2016/17 and 2017/18, which equates to a further
cash reduction of £2.555m for 2016/17 and £2.360m for 2017/18 above the levels
originally assumed (i.e. a total savings requirement of £31.050m).

The 2016/17 Draft Savings Proposals Report presented to Cabinet on 14th October
2015 included an updated MTFP based on a number of assumptions and
adjustments (some of which have reduced the overall savings requirement). Full
details of these were contained within the report. After all of the above adjustments
have been factored into the updated MTFP the remaining projected savings
requirement for the Authority are £14.321m for 2016/17, £11.441m for 2017/18 and
£9.423m for 2018/19.

Page 2



The budget strategy agreed by Council on 25th February 2015 included a number of
principles to be followed throughout the process of identifying savings proposals. In
following these principles, the work to identify savings proposals has been led by the
Corporate Management Team in consultation with appropriate Cabinet Members.
Heads of Service have been heavily involved throughout the process with support
from colleagues in Finance. Service Managers have also been included to ensure
that all options that are deliverable for 2016/17 have been considered.

Some of the approved savings for the 2015/16 financial year only had a part-year
impact (totalling £1.980m) with the full-year impact now being available to support the
savings required for 2016/17. These were summarised in Section 4.2.3 of the report.
A high-level summary of the new proposed savings for the 2016/17 financial year by
service area and totalling £12.432m was also included in the report. The total
proposed savings of £12.432m along with the £1.980m full-year impacts is £91,000
higher than the anticipated total savings requirement of £14.321m for the 2016/17
financial year. This provides a small buffer which can be used to reconsider some of
the savings proposals at the conclusion of the ongoing consultation process or
alternatively the £91,000 can be set aside as savings in advance for the 2017/18
financial year.

The report presented to Cabinet on 14th October 2015 identified savings proposals
totalling £8.661m across all service areas that do not have a direct impact on service
users or the public. These proposals were categorised into a single line for each
service area in the Appendices of the report. This is consistent with the approach
adopted last year and the proposals consist in the main of vacancy management,
structural reviews, budget realignment and minor changes to service provision.

The 2016/17 savings proposals were summarised for the Education and Lifelong
Learning Directorate and amounted to £1.964m. Proposals amounting to £1.496m
will have no direct impact on the public. The remaining proposals totalling £0.468m
will have an impact on the public.

Members were referred to Appendix 1 of the report and provided with an update in
relation to the Medium-Term Financial Plan for schools. The update assumes that
the schools “pledge” will continue to be honoured but schools will be required to
manage their own cost pressures and resulting savings requirements. Members
noted that there is a shortfall of 2.92% for 2016/17, 0.49% for 2017/18 and 0.81% for
2018/19.

In addition to schools having to manage the projected shortfall of 2.92% for 2016/17
there will also be a financial impact on schools arising directly from 2016/17 savings
proposals put forward by the Authority.

The WG provided an update on the 9th December and Mr Burns confirmed the
proposed settlement offered, is better than expected. However, austerity is not over
and there still remains a significant reduction in the budget.

During the course of the debate, reference was made to the proposed increase in
council tax of 3.9%. It was noted that this was not a matter for the Scrutiny Committee to
debate.

Members were informed that a seminar with WG will be held on 14th January 2016,

where full details of the Local Government Financial Settlement will be made
available.

Page 3



Following consideration of the report, it was moved and seconded that the updated
Medium-Term Financial plan and anticipated requirements (as outlined in the
Officer's report) be noted, and that consideration and comment of the individual
reports included on the meeting agenda relating to the draft savings proposals for
2016/17 take place. By a show of hands, this was unanimously agreed.

Members thanked Mr Burns for his report and agreed to consider the proposals for
each of the service areas.

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN — SAVINGS PROPOSALS FOR 2016/17

Bleddyn Hopkins (Assistant Director for Education) presented the report and
summarised the 2016/17 savings proposals within the Directorate of Education and
Lifelong Learning to support the Authority’s Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). As
agreed, each proposal was considered and the views of Members and their support
or otherwise was recorded.

Members were informed of the full year effect of proposals implemented in 2015/16.
These were included in the budget strategy previously agreed by Members with the
proposal to reduce the library service opening hours. These were implemented on
the 1st October 2015 and as such would deliver a part year saving in 2015/16. The
proposals will deliver additional savings in 2016/17 as a result of the full year effect.
The additional savings resulting from this full year are £67k.

The total proposed savings of £1.964m include an amount of £1.496m that would
have no direct impact upon the public. These savings can be achieved through a
combination of budget realignment, structural reviews and vacancy management.

The remaining savings proposals of £0.468m will impact upon the public to varying
degrees in relation to the following:

Library Book Fund Reduction £55k
(Public Impact: Low)

It was noted that the lead officer for the Library Service is currently experiencing a
period of ill health. Members wished it noted that their thoughts for a speedy
recovery were passed on.

Members were informed that the County Borough Library Service proposes to reduce
its book fund by a total of £105k between 2016 and 2018, amounting to £55k
(2016/17) and a further £50k (2017/18) respectively. Following these proposed
reductions, the remaining book fund budget will amount to £272k.

The proposed reduction protects public access to library facilities and all customer
facing services and is considered a measured approach whilst offering a substantial
contribution to the Authority’s MTFP.

Members noted that the proposed reductions will weaken the Council’s ability to meet
the Welsh Government’s Public Library Standards Framework 2014-2017,
specifically, but at this stage the precise effect is unknown.

Caerphilly County Borough Council Libraries are adjudged currently as one of the
best performing services in Wales based on its 2014-2015 annual update return.

Page 4



Concerns were raised by Members regarding the proposed reductions. Mr Hopkins
confirmed that the Authority has tried to protect front line services and to minimise
the impact on a fazed basis. He also confirmed that Caerphilly still has all of its
libraries open unlike some of its neighbouring Authorities.

Members thanked the Officer and noted the report and acknowledged the overall
assessment of the County Borough Council’s Public Library Service for 2014-2015.

By a show of hands, and in noting there were 10 Members in favour and 2
abstentions, this proposal was supported by the majority present.

Maintenance of school buildings — 50/50 funding with schools £329k
(Public Impact: Low)

Members were reminded of the introduction of the Fair Funding regulations in 2000,
whereby the Directorate retained a residual revenue budget to assist with lower value
capital schemes. In recent years this budget has typically been used to enhance the
core capital programme by offering assistance on a 50/50 basis to support school
projects.  Schools presently submit bids annually in the autumn term for
consideration for the following financial year. This proposal will have little or no
impact upon compliance with statutory maintenance but will adversely affect school
condition survey works.

The proposal involves removing the budget of £329k in its entirety in 2016/17. It is
acknowledged that this will have an adverse effect upon school buildings with the
potential to accelerate their depreciation and worsen their general condition.

To mitigate this effect, it is proposed that consideration be given to utilising Local
Management of Schools (LMS) contingency balances to support continued
investment with schools in school buildings. It is specifically suggested that a sum of
£750k be earmarked over 3 years (£250k per annum) to support schemes as
bid/priorities with schools.

It was noted that the letter requesting bids from schools for 2016-17 projects have
been sent out on the basis of 50/50 funding. It is therefore suggested that the 50/50
commitment is retained for 2016-17 but funded from LMS contingency and that
notice is then given for the following 2 years, the split will be 70% (School) / 30%
(Central Education).

This arrangement would have the benefit of still supporting school capital projects but
utilising LMS contingency funds for the central education proportion, thereby fulfilling
the MTFP proposals.

Members queried schools maintenance budgets and Officers confirmed that
clawback arrangements are in place if schools do not spend their maintenance
allocations.

During the course of the ensuing debate Members expressed their concerns in
relation to the 70/30 split. The Committee would endorse a 50/50 split but would not
recommend a 70/30 split during 2017/18 and 2018/19 to Cabinet.

By a show of hands it was unanimously agreed that this proposal was not supported.

Page 5



Community Centres £64k
(Public Impact: Medium)

Councillors J Bevan, P.J. Bevan, Mrs A. Blackman, W. David (Chair), H.R. Davies, D.
Havard, G. Johnston declared an interest in this item as being Members of
Community Centre Management Committees. As it was personal and not prejudicial
they were not required to leave the meeting.

Members were reminded of the Task and Finish group, made up of Members from
the Scrutiny Committee that was established to review the Council’s support of
community centre provision throughout the County Borough and make any
recommendations necessary under the Medium Term Financial Plan.

The group met on four occasions in the summer of 2015, and considered a range of
issues, including:

Community Centre locations

Proximity of Community Centres

Asset Transfer

Operation and Performance of Community Centres including building
condition and suitability for future delivery or local ownership and
management by interested voluntary sector groups

The group subsequently made the following recommendations to achieve the MTFP
savings target of £64k in 2016-2017:

e That the council cuts the budget for payment of water rates for community
centres to achieve savings of £27k.

e That the council reduces its caretaking contribution from 12 hours per week
to 11 hours per week for each community centre, and recharges each
community centre for one hour per week to achieve savings of £14k.

e That up to three centres be put forward for closure, Rhymney Day, Tirphil
and Channel View (Risca), to achieve savings of £18k.

o That miscellaneous items be cut from the Community Centre service
budget to achieve savings of £5k.

Recommendations were presented to the Education and Lifelong Learning Scrutiny
Committee on 22 September 2015. At that meeting Members moved the report with
an amendment to Rhymney Day Centre being allowed more time to increase its use.
The intention is to report this matter to Cabinet, early in the new year, for final
determination.

By a show of hands and in noting it was unanimously agreed, this proposal was
supported.

Contribution to GAVO play programme £20k
(Public Impact: Medium)

Members were informed of the MTFP proposal to reduce the Gwent Association of
Voluntary Organisations (GAVO) contribution by £20k from its present £50k. The
£50k annual grant funding of GAVO by CCBC Youth Service (since 2008) supports
the employment of a full time Holiday Scheme Coordinator, whose function is to
advise and support any groups considering the provision of School holiday period-
specific activity for children and young people between the ages of 8-18. While less

Page 6



effective in the first years of operation, this role has in the past 12 months developed
more positively. Although a steering group to inform this role has been in place since
inception, this has not completely enabled the role to be as focussed on holiday-
specific support as first envisaged. However, in recent times the present incumbent
has nevertheless provided the types of support necessary to a number of partner
groups, both statutory and voluntary in nature.

The current proposal of reducing the £50k grant by £20k to £30k is intended to strike
a balance between making the necessary savings and enabling, in part, the
continued support of a partner group. The present medium impact assessment is not
in relation to the impact on service users but an indication that this funding
arrangement has been in place for 6/7 years and is the Youth Service’'s most
significant example of external (voluntary sector) funding support. There will be
minimal impact on service users, as the Youth Service would take up any shortfall in
capacity.

During the course of the ensuing debate Officers confirmed reducing the budget to
Summer/Play Programme, will impact on the voluntary sector as the funding is
utilised for a specific post and not the play scheme itself and the suggestion of
transferring this service came from the Youth Service, who will take over this service.

By a show of hands, and in noting it was unanimously agreed, this proposal was
supported.

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN — SAVINGS PROPOSALS RELATING
TO SCHOOLS FOR 2016/17

The Chair advised that when considering the proposals, as detailed in the report, it
was his intention to debate and vote on each individually in order that Officers can be
aware of the views of the Members and their support or otherwise on the proposed
savings as detailed therein.

Keri Cole (Chief Education Officer) provided Members with details of 2016/17
savings proposals which impact on the Authority’s Schools. Some of the proposals
originate from other Directorates in the Authority. Consequently, these details are
also included in other Medium Term Financial Plan Scrutiny Reports for the Authority,
but for ease of access and consultation with School’s, they are encompassed in the
report, as follows:

Introduce charge to Schools for provision of sandwich places - £174k

Members were informed that the Catering Service provides a school meals service in
75 primary schools and in doing so currently sets out and clears away places for
those pupils eating their own sandwiches, even disposing of any subsequent waste
at the expense of Catering. It is proposed that a charge is introduced for this service
which is currently provided free of charge amounting to 1 hour of staff time per day at
each school. This amounts to approximately £2,200 per school each year.

It was explained that Schools may choose to make their own arrangements for

setting out and clearing away sandwich places, in which case the Catering Service
will be able to reduce staffing hours and realise the saving identified.

Page 7



Members queried the 1 hour of staff time referred to in the report and were informed
that the figure was provided by the Catering Service and is based on average per
school. It was noted that the Local Authority are currently subsidising schools and
the charge for the service is the responsibility of the school and not of the parents.

By a show of hands and in noting there were 9 Members in favour, 3 Members
against and 2 abstentions, this proposal was supported by the majority present.

Reduce Operational Breakfast Clubs Staff Cover by 1 Hour per Day - £60k

This is a proposal to reduce the staffing hours by 1 hour per day in each breakfast
club that the Catering Services operates within 68 primary schools. The operating
times of the breakfast clubs would be unchanged but the level of supervision of
pupils throughout the breakfast club provision would reduce. It is proposed that the
level of supervision will continue to be suitable and reasonable considering any risks
or individual pupil’s needs. Staff cover is difficult to arrange at short notice and in any
circumstances where safe levels of supervision cannot be maintained due to
sickness levels or unauthorised absences, the breakfast club provision would be
withdrawn until suitable staffing levels are able to be put in place. All current SLAs
would need to be amended to incorporate this provision.

By a show of hands, and in noting there were 8 Members in favour, 2 Members
against and 4 abstentions, this proposal was supported by the majority present.

Increase Price of School Meals at Secondary Schools - £24k (£48k over 2 years
and Primary Schools - £28k (£56k over 2 years)

Members considered both proposals as one item. It is proposed that the price of a
Secondary school meal from September 2016 be increased by 10p from £2.15 to
£2.25 and the price of a Primary school meal be increased by 10p from £1.90 to
£2.00.

There will be some impact upon parent / carers amounting to an increased cost of
50p per week per child. However, Caerphilly CBC has one of the lowest prices for a
school meal in Wales. The Caerphilly Catering school meal service is fully Appetite
for Life compliant and relies upon pupils choosing to stay for a meal, ever increasing
high street competition, schools not operating a closed gate policy and reduced lunch
times all impact upon take-up.

Members noted the projected additional income of £24k (Secondary) and £28k
(Primary) have been adjusted to account for an estimated 10% reduction in take up
as a result of the price increase. The proposed increase would be implemented at
the start of the school year in September 2016. There would therefore be an
additional £24k and £28K in 2017/18 (i.e. £48k and £56Kk in total).

Concerns were expressed in relation to the proposed increases and the impact on
families and Officers confirmed that the last increase of 10p was implemented in
2013/14.

By a show of hands and in noting it was unanimously agreed, these proposals were
not supported.

Page 8



Update HR SLA charges to Schools - £100k (£200k over 2 years)

Reference was made to the demands on the HR Service over the years in supporting
Schools that has necessitated an increase in staffing levels. There are currently 13.6
FTE’s supporting schools in all HR issues relating to 4,500 teaching and non-
teaching staff.

Consequently, there is currently a gap of circa £300k between the cost of the service
and the funding received from Schools through the SLA’s. This differential is not
sustainable in the current climate and whilst it is recognised that this creates a cost
pressure for Schools the increasing demands on the service have driven costs up
over a number of years.

Details of the proposals to reduce the funding gap were provided in relation to the
SLA charges to schools and Officers confirmed the increase will still mean that the
HR support to schools remains supported by the Authority.

A number of Members queried the consultation process and were informed that the
Authority met with all Head Teachers as part of the consultation process and 100 per
cent of all schools are prepared to pay for the service and support and will sign up to
the SLA.

By a show of hands and in noting it was unanimously agreed, this proposal was
supported.

School Crossing Patrol site reduction - £10k (£20k over 2 years)

Members were informed of the identified saving for school crossing patrol sites
relating to the application of the national criteria and guidelines for the assessment of
SCP sites (based on the number of children crossing and the number of vehicles
recorded over a given time period am and / or pm). This is applied to requests for
new sites or when sites become vacant through retirement or resignation. The £10k
saving applies specifically to the latter case and has been applied over the last 2
years resulting in a reduction in the number of sites operated. There is sufficient
turnover of sites which do not meet criteria to meet the £10k figure on a yearly basis.

Concerns were raised by Members in relation to this proposal with regard to the
safety of children and questioned the level of standard in some areas. Officers
confirmed that WG provided guidelines in relation to the criteria used that Members
had received and endorsed previously and noted that they are guidelines and not
requirements. The Local Authority fund positions, where the criteria is met. It was
explained that Head Teachers have informed Officers that vacancies are very difficult
to fill, due to weather conditions and hours of work etc.

By a show of hands, and in noting there were 12 Members in favour and 2
abstentions, this proposal was supported by the majority present.

Maintenance of school buildings — 50/50 funding with schools £329k

Members were reminded of the introduction of the Fair Funding regulations in 2000,
whereby the Directorate retained a residual revenue budget to assist with lower value
capital schemes. In recent years this budget has typically been used to enhance the
core capital programme by offering assistance on a 50/50 basis to support school
projects.  Schools presently submit bids annually in the autumn term for
consideration for the following financial year. This proposal will have little or no

Page 9



impact upon compliance with statutory maintenance but will adversely affect school
condition survey works.

The proposal involves removing the budget of £329k in its entirety in 2016/17. It is
acknowledged that this will have an adverse effect upon school buildings with the
potential to accelerate their depreciation and worsen their general condition.

To mitigate this effect, it is proposed that consideration be given to utilising Local
Management of Schools (LMS) contingency balances to support continued
investment with schools in school buildings. It is specifically suggested that a sum of
£750k be earmarked over 3 years (£250k per annum) to support schemes as
bid/priorities with schools.

It was noted that the letter requesting bids from schools for 2016-17 projects have
been sent out on the basis of 50/50 funding. It is therefore suggested that the 50/50
commitment is retained for 2016-17 but funded from LMS contingency and that
notice is then given for the following 2 years, the split will be 70% (School) / 30%
(Central Education).

This arrangement would have the benefit of still supporting school capital projects but
utilising LMS contingency funds for the central education proportion, thereby fulfilling
the MTFP proposals.

Members queried schools maintenance budgets and Officers confirmed that
clawback arrangements are in place if schools do not spend their maintenance
allocations.

During the course of the ensuing debate Members expressed their concerns in
relation to the 70/30 split. The Committee would endorse a 50/50 split but would not
recommend a 70/30 split during 2017/18 and 2018/19.

By a show of hands and in noting there were 10 Members in favour and 1 abstention
this proposal was supported by the majority present.

Teachers Performance Management - £154k (£264k over 2 years)

Members were advised that the budget provided funding for supply costs to allow for
classroom observation and performance review. This funding was previously a
Welsh Government Grant that transferred into the Authority’s revenue support grant,
over 10 years ago. To date it has continued to be allocated to Schools, based on the
same allocation criteria but without any specific requirement for the school to
evidence how this money is spent.

It was noted that the allocation per school is in respect of teacher numbers (circa
£226 per teacher). It ranges from £1k (smallest school) to £5k (largest school) a year
in our primary schools and £4k to £13k in our secondary schools.

Whilst it is recognised that this reduction in funding will impact on schools, it is also
recognised that the ethos of this funding is embedded into the culture of schools. Itis
proposed that the impact of the reduction is tapered over 2 years, 7/12" in 2016/17
and 5/12" in 2017/18.

By a show of hands and in noting there were 9 Members in favour, 1 Member against
and 1 abstention, this proposal was supported by the majority present.

Page 10



Behaviour / ALN Advisory & Lanquage Support Services - £226k

Consideration was given to these services that are largely discretionary but have
been supporting schools for some statutory elements and some early intervention.
As vacancies have occurred staff have not been replaced, as the statutory function
could still be delivered. The emphasis is how upon building capacity within schools
and the Authority has funded comprehensive training programmes to assist this
process. Members noted that a recent £200k investment has been made in
behaviour training for school based staff. This savings proposal relates to the non-
filling of vacancies.

This approach will continue into 2017/18, with further proposals in these areas.
Officers confirmed that standards are continuing to rise in Primary schools and that
during the consultation process schools have confirmed that they are on board with

the proposals.

By a show of hands, and in noting there were 8 Members in favour, 2 Members
against and 1 abstention, this proposal was supported by the majority present.

Community Focus Schools - £94k

Members were informed that the Connecting Communities Strategy provides a
framework for working with both Primary and Secondary schools throughout the
Borough. The Connecting Communities budget funds two full time members of staff
to provide a platform for the development of a broad and progressive range of out of
school hours learning for children, young people and adults. This is not a statutory
provision and the proposal would see the complete removal of the service.
Connecting Communities Officers have been very proactive in securing additional
sources of funding with and for Schools.

By a show of hands, and in noting there were 10 Members in favour and 1
abstention, this proposal was supported by the majority present.

The Chair thanked the Officer for the detailed report and responding to the queries
raised.

The meeting closed at 8.25 p.m.

Approved as a correct record, and subject to any amendments or corrections agreed

and recorded in the minutes of the meeting held on the 23rd February 2016, they
were signed by the Chair.

CHAIR

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Agenda ltem 4

A
CAERPHILLY

CUNTY BORDIIGH COUNC,
CYINGOR BWRIDEISTREF Slﬂﬂl_

CAERFFILY
4

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE, YSTRAD MYNACH
ON TUESDAY, 12TH JANUARY 2016 AT 5.30 P.M.

PRESENT:
Councillor W. David - Chair
Councillor J. Pritchard - Vice-Chair
Councillors:

C. Gordon, D. Havard, M.P. James, Mrs M.E. Sargent, D.W.R. Preece, J.E. Roberts and
R. Saralis.

Cabinet Member for Education and Leisure: R. Passmore

Together with:
K. Cole (Chief Education Officer), B. Hopkins (Assistant Director for Education), P. O’'Neill
(Senior Youth Service Manager), J. Garland (Service Manager - Social Inclusion), S. Ellis
(Principal Educational Psychologist), L. Perkins (Education Welfare Officer), L. Travis (Senior
Community Education Manager), C. Jones (Youth Forum Co-ordinator) and A. Dredge
(Committee Services Officer).

Co-opted Members: Mr A. Farina-Childs (Parent Governor), Mrs A. Goss (Parent Governor),
Mrs J. Havard (NUT), Mrs P.J. Ireland (NUT) and Mr M. Western.

Also Present:

R. Berrigan, J. McCarthy (ESTYN), M. Sims (Headteacher, Heolddu Comprehensive), L.
Prosser (Chair, Youth Forum) and D. Thomas (Education Representative, Youth Forum).

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J. Bevan, P.J. Bevan, Mrs A.
Blackman, H.R. Davies, G. Johnston and Mrs G. Oliver.

2, DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest received at the commencement or during the course of
the meeting.

Page 13



MINUTES - 3RD NOVEMBER 2015

RESOLVED that in noting that the attendance of Mrs A. Goss, Mrs J. Havard and Mr
M. Western had not been recorded, the minutes of the Education for Life Scrutiny
Committee meeting held on 3rd November 2015 (minute no. 1 — 14) be approved as a
correct record and signed by the Chair.

CONSIDERATION OF ANY MATTER REFERRED TO THIS COMMITTEE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE CALL - IN PROCEDURE

There had been no matters referred to the Scrutiny Committee in accordance with the call-in
procedure.

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR EDUCATION AND LIFELONG LEARNING

Councillor R. Passmore, Cabinet Member for Education and Lifelong Learning, informed
Members that the First Minister of Wales, Carwyn Jones AM, officially opened Y Gwyndy
School on Wednesday 9th December, which is a £20m state-of-the-art Welsh Medium
Education Campus for Caerphilly. Details of funding were provided and the progress
achieved since the works started in 2012.

Members noted that Trinity Fields School and Resource Base has recently been presented
with two prestigious awards, the Inclusion Quality Mark (IQM) and Investors in Families (liF)
Quality Mark. The IQM recognises and celebrates the inclusion work going on in schools, on
both a local and national scale. The School also met the standards required for becoming a
Centre of Excellence and has become the first Special School in Wales to achieve the
Investors in Families Quality Mark for the third time. This award is made to schools that are
committed to working with the whole family to improve outcomes for children.

The Scrutiny Committee were informed that the Youth Forum has been awarded a Youth on
Board Award (2015) by the British Youth Council. This is the National Youth Council of the
UK and is a youth-led charity that empowers young people aged 25 and under to influence
and inform the decisions that affect their lives. Young people are empowered to raise their
own issues and discuss them at Scrutiny/Cabinet and also meet with CCBC Officers, along
with AMs, MPs & MEPs.

In concluding, the Cabinet Member confirmed that Newbridgel, St. Cenydd and Pontllanfraith
Comprehensive Schools are no longer being monitored by Estyn.

Councillor J. Pritchard wished to give formal recognition to the Council’s vision to develop the
Y Gwyndy campus and acknowledge the high standard of provision.

The Scrutiny Committee thanked the Cabinet Member for the update.
CABINET REPORTS

None of the Cabinet Reports listed on the agenda had been called forward for discussion at
the meeting.

Page 14



REPORTS OF OFFICERS

Consideration was given to the following reports.

JUNIOR AND YOUTH FORUM PRIORITIES 2016

Councillor M. Prew, Youth Champion welcomed Dylan Thomas (Education Representative,
Youth Forum) and Lauren Prosser (Chair, Youth Forum) to the Scrutiny Committee. They
delivered a presentation regarding the issues raised by children and young people via the
Youth Service’s Junior and Youth Forums and set out the current Priority Issues chosen and
also sought support and confirmation that they be presented to Cabinet for consideration.

The Junior and Youth Forums are structured and organised around four themes: Education
for Life, Living Environment, Health, Social Care and Well-Being, and Regeneration. Junior
Forum representatives are aged 7-11 years and Youth Forum representatives are aged 11-25
years.

Members were advised of the Youth Forum Conference in October 2015 and the Junior
Forum Meeting in November 2015, where children and young people have identified issues
important to them and have voted on a Priority Issue for 2016.

The issues and priorities raised by the Youth Forum were noted by Members and a discussion
ensued regarding raising awareness to mental Health issues, increasing employment
opportunities for young people, making young people feel safer in their communities and
establishing the provision of Wi-Fi in all building-based locations.

The Junior Forum representatives identified a priority for each theme and these were
discussed with particular reference to respecting the natural habitat of wildlife, misbehaving
pupils taking up too much lesson time, stopping hunger by providing more foodbanks and
reducing the price to public transport.

The Chair thanked the Youth Forum for delivering a competent presentation and requested
that his congratulations be recorded in relation to the Youth Forum’s success and BYC
Awards achieved.

Following consideration and discussion of the report, the Education for Life Scrutiny
Committee, recommended that the Junior and Youth Forum issues be presented to Cabinet.

By a show of hands, this was unanimously agreed.
IMPROVING SCHOOL ATTENDANCE REPORT AND ATTENDANCE AND EXCLUSIONS
PRESENTATION

Jackie Garland, Service Manager, Social Inclusion, delivered the report and presentation at
agenda items 9 and 10, as one item.

Members were advised that improving attendance and reducing exclusions continue to be
priorities for the LA and are targets in all key plans. The LA works with schools and other
partners to ensure a robust approach towards the reduction of exclusions and increase in
attendance rates.

Page 15



The Committee noted that LA Officers monitor exclusions on a monthly basis and contact
schools to clarify any issues identified. Targeted interventions are agreed between the LA
and EAS. The impact of this accelerated approach has been significant so far with regard to
some of the exclusion indicators. It was noted that there have been no permanent exclusions
issued in primary schools for 4 consecutive years and the number of permanent exclusions
issued in secondary schools decreased from 14 in 2012/13 to 8 in 2014/15. However, there
have been no permanent exclusions from the EOTAS provisions.

There have been increases in the overall number of fixed term exclusions in primary and
secondary schools and the overall number of days lost due to fixed term exclusions in primary
and secondary schools. There have also been increases in the number of pupils receiving
exclusions in both primary and secondary schools. Ms Garland explained that the increase in
these indicators is a cause for concern and a priority for the LA. It was clarified that whilst the
number of days lost due to fixed term exclusions of 5.5 days and fewer has increased across
both phases, the number of days lost due to fixed term exclusions of 6 days or more has
decreased in secondary schools.

The implementation of the Behaviour Strategy and the embedding of the Pivotal model of
behaviour management training across schools should facilitate the reduction in exclusions.
Ms Garland welcomed Mr Mathew Sims, Head Teacher of Heolddu Comprehensive School,
to the Scrutiny Committee who provided Members with a brief presentation in relation to his
School’s Attendance statistics.

Members noted the challenges presented and strategies implemented for raising attendance
at Heolddu Comprehensive School, where the Appointment of a Family Liaison/Attendance
Officer has had a significant impact. Mr Sims confirmed that new processes are more robust
and targeting support for specific groups of learners is essential. The School has also
introduced an Inter-form attendance league which recognises pupil’s attendance.

A query was raised regarding the most effective strategy that the school has employed and Mr
Sims confirmed the introduction of the Family Liaison Officer has already had a significant
impact on the school’s approach to raising levels of attendance.

The Committee thanked the Head Teacher for the presentation and for responding to the
questions raised.

Ms Garland then presented the report in relation to Attendance in Schools within the borough.

Members were informed of the National Statistics First Release Absenteeism from Secondary
Schools in Wales, 2014/15, published as SDR 135/15 and Absenteeism from Primary Schools
in Wales, published as SDR 198/2015, that provides a national overview of school attendance
and absence rates and can be viewed at www.statswales.gov.uk.

The primary school attendance data for 2014/15, records a 0.1% improvement in comparison
with 2013/14. Whilst 41 of the 75 primary schools showed improved attendance, 27 primary
schools showed a decrease in attendance from the previous year.

Secondary schools have seen a decrease of 0.2% the same period. Whilst 6 out of 14
secondary schools show improved attendance, 7 schools showed a decrease in attendance
from the previous year.

Members noted that 18 out of the 22 LA’s in Wales are recorded as having improved
secondary school attendance for 2014/15 compared with 21 in 2013/14. Caerphilly was
ranked at 22", This is a cause for concern and a priority for the Local Authority.

There remains evidence of a strong correlation between poor attendance and those children
and young people eligible for Free School Meals (FSM) as indicated in the Secondary School
statistical release. Improving attendance remains a priority for the Local Authority and is a

Page 16



10.

target in the Learning Education and Inclusion Service Improvement Plan.

Clarification was sought in relation to the Behaviour Strategy and Members were informed
that a Members’ Seminar will be convened. This was unanimously agreed by the Members
present.

In concluding, Ms Garland informed the Committee that the Education Department are
receiving more support from EAS in relation to exclusions and that data is monitored on a
monthly basis.

Having fully considered the report, the Scrutiny Committee thanked the Officer and noted the
contents.

UPDATE ON EDUCATION OTHER THAN AT SCHOOL (EOTAS)

Andrea Davies, EOTAS Manager, delivered a presentation and updated Members on the
provision for pupils who are educated other than at school (EOTAS).

It was explained that EOTAS provision caters for the needs of children and young people from
Nursery to Y11. Pupils enter into the provision following an application made to EOTAS Panel
which meets on a monthly basis. Pupils’ details and information are reviewed by Panel
Members who include representatives from Educational Psychology Service, Behaviour
Support Service, Youth Service, Education Welfare and the EOTAS team members. Cases
are reviewed and placement decisions can be made based on individual pupil need.
Outcomes from the panel are shared with the mainstream school.

Members noted a combination of options are available for pupils entering EOTAS provision.
This may include full 5 day placements or part time placements shared with their mainstream
schools. It is important that this provision is appropriate and of high quality and should also
offer outcomes for pupils and value for money.

Ms Davies set out the aims of the provision including pupils returning to mainstream
education, accessing relevant curriculums, addressing behavioural needs, coordinating multi
agency service input and providing support for families. Details of the qualifications achieved
during 2014/15 were provided.

Clarification was sought in relation to home tuition and Members were informed that when
parents elect for this option, the Local Authority can only intervene where pupils are subject to
Special Educational Needs or there are Child Protection issues associated.

The Scrutiny Committee thanked the Officer for the report and noted the contents.

EUROPEAN SOCIAL FUND (ESF) PROJECTS 2014-2020

Lyn Travis, Senior Community Education Manager, presented the report that informed
Members of four projects, Bridges into Work 2, Workings Skills for Adults 2, Inspire 2 Work
and Inspire 2 Achieve. The first two projects have received approval for European Social
Fund support, whilst the two Inspire projects are at advanced business planning stage.

Despite the recent upturn in the economy, unemployment and economic inactivity is still an
issue for concern in the county borough. Since 2013, Caerphilly Officers have participated in
the development of regional proposals seeking to build on the success of employment support
operations delivered under the 2007 — 13 ESF Programme, including Bridges into Work,
Prevent and Working Skills for Adults.

Reference was made to a number of operations that have now been approved by the Welsh

Page 17



1.

12

European Funding Office (WEFO) and others that are at an advanced stage of development,
nearing approval. Those approved include the WG led Communities4Work operation, that
matches some of their investment in the Communities First programme, with CF teams now
supported to deliver employment and support in the most deprived areas of Wales.

The successors to Bridges into Work and Working Skills for Adults were approved by WEFO
in August 2015, the CCBC match funding for these operations was endorsed by CMT in July.
Bridges into Work 2 will provide essential employment support for adults in non-CF areas,
whilst Working Skills for Adults 2 will provide upskilling opportunities for those who are low
skilled and low paid in work, to address the in work poverty agenda. Both projects will provide
direct delivery until January 2018, with project closure by the end of April 2018. Torfaen
County Borough Council is the Lead Sponsor on these 2 projects.

Members sought clarification in relation to ‘Inspire 2 Work’ and ‘Inspire 2 Achieve’ projects
and were informed that both are in the advanced business plan stage. The projects focus on
the clearly identified need to address the issue of young people who are either NEET (not in
employment, education or training) or at risk of becoming NEET. These have not yet been
formally approved by WEFO. The Lead Sponsor on both projects is Blaenau Gwent County
Borough Council.

Members thanked the Officer for the detailed report and noted the contents.

REQUESTS FOR AN ITEM TO BE PLACED ON THE NEXT AVAILABLE AGENDA

There were no requests for items to be placed on the next available agenda.

INFORMATION ITEMS

The Committee noted the following items for information, full details of which were included
within the Officers reports. They were not brought forward for review.

1. Reducing Exclusions.

2. Minutes of the Caerphilly Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education (SACRE)
held on the 10th June 2015.

3. Budget Monitoring 2015 - 16.

4, Summary of Members Attendance — Quarter 2 — 1st July 2015 to 30th September
2015.

The meeting closed at 8.25 p.m.

Approved as a correct record, and subject to any amendments or corrections agreed and

recorded in the minutes of the meeting held on 9th February 2016, they were signed by the
Chair.

CHAIR

Page 18



Agenda Iltem 8

N
CAERPHILLY

COIINTY BOROUIGH COLFNCIE
CYNGODR BWRDEISTIREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
23RD FEBRUARY 2016

SUBJECT: COMMUNITIES FIRST PUPIL DEPRIVATION GRANT MATCH FUND
PROJECTS - YOUTH WORKERS IN SCHOOLS AND FAMILY SUPPORT
PROJECT (JOINT WORKING BETWEEN COMMUNITIES FIRST AND
SCHOOLS)

REPORT BY: INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To provide Members with an overview of the Communities First Pupil Deprivation Grant Match
Fund projects, which have been developed jointly between schools, Communities First and
Caerphilly Youth Service in each cluster; as well as to provide information on their aims and

anticipated outcomes in relation to academic performance and parental engagement with
schools.

2, SUMMARY
2.1 The report provides an update on the projects developed in line with the Communities First
Pupil Deprivation Grant Match Fund, including the initial development stages of the projects,

progress to date, and emerging outcomes. The programme has been running for two years
with project costs of £400,000 in 2014/15 and projected costs of £320,000 in 2015/16.

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1 Welsh Government

¢ Building Resilient Communities — Taking Forward the Tackling Poverty Action Plan
(2012-16)

3.2 Estyn

o Effective Practice in Tackling Poverty and Disadvantage in Schools (2012)

3.3 Caerphilly CBC
e Caerphilly Community Strategy (CCBC 2004)

e Single Integrated Plan (CCBC 2013 — 17)

Page 19



41

4.2.

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

THE REPORT

The Communities First Pupil Deprivation Grant Match Fund projects have been running in
Caerphilly County Borough Council since 1% April 2013.

The projects have been developed in partnership between Communities First (CF) and local
secondary schools in the Caerphilly Borough. Funding for the projects consists of 50%
funding from the core Pupil Deprivation Grant (PDG) of each of the schools involved in the
project; matched with 50% funding from the Communities First Pupil Deprivation Grant Match
Fund.

The Communities First Pupil Deprivation Grant Match Fund was made available by Welsh
Government from 2013, to encourage schools in areas of high deprivation to develop closer
links with their local communities and to promote greater collaboration of schools with their
local CF cluster.

Within the Caerphilly County Borough, 1 secondary school from each of the 4 CF clusters was
identified to host projects to be funded through the Communities First PDG Match Fund. The
schools were identified following a consultation process which took into account factors such
as number of Free School Meal (FSM) pupils and proportion of pupils from CF areas. The 4
schools which were selected are as follows:

Rhymney Comprehensive (Upper Rhymney Valley cluster)
Pontllanfraith Comprehensive (Mid Valleys East cluster)

Lewis School, Pengam (Mid Valleys West cluster)

St Martin’s Comprehensive, Caerphilly (Caerphilly Basin cluster)

Delivery on the CF PDG Match Fund projects commenced in April 2014. A PDG Youth
Worker and PDG Family Link Officer were employed for each cluster, with each pair of
Officers responsible for delivering 4 projects (Homework Clubs, Youth Workers in Schools,
Family Support, Improving Parent Skills) within each of the identified secondary schools. The
PDG Youth Worker focused on working with targeted young people to improve academic
performance; whilst the PDG Family Link Officer worked with the parents and families of the
young people to improve parental engagement with the school.

Outcomes from the first year were generally positive, with improvements in academic
performance of young people including improved attendance, improved behaviour and
additional qualifications gained. Improvements were also made in terms of parental
engagement. However the Improving Parent Skills project was unsuccessful due to the failure
of the Parent Forum model that this project was based upon, thus leading to the decision to
discontinue this particular aspect.

Within the current delivery year 2015-16, the CF PDG model for Caerphilly continues to run as
a collaborative approach between Communities First, the Youth Service and the School. As
of April 2015, the School Headteachers have taken over management of the project and line
management of the individual Family Link Officers, overseen by a project management group
chaired by the Chief Education Officer. Previously the staff and the project were managed
within Communities First, however it was considered that changing the project management in
this way would lead to improved cohesion with the Schools and their associated structures
and priorities. The projects have also been simplified for the current year and there are now
just two CF PDG projects running within each of the identified schools, namely Youth Workers
in Schools and Family Support Project.

For the current year, a targeted group of pupils (and their families) was identified to enable
consistency and quality of work over a 12 month period. The group that were chosen for each
school consist of Free School Meal (FSM) pupils moving from year 10 last year into year 11 in
the current school year, who are on the borderline for achievement and considered to be
capable of achieving well with some additional support.

Page 20



4.9

410

4.11

412

5.1

6.1

The largest barrier encountered by the project so far, across all 4 PDG Schools in the
Caerphilly Borough, has been in relation to staffing issues. For various reasons including staff
moving on to new opportunities, it has proved challenging to maintain a full staffing team of
both Youth Worker and Family Link Officer in schools. The aim of this joint staffing team is
that they can work together to form a holistic support function for the identified pupils, with one
member of staff supporting the individual pupil and the other working with the family.

However where staff members have not been in post this has obviously limited the capacity of
the other staff member to deliver the project as planned, which has had a subsequent impact
on outcomes.

Where the project has run as planned, with the full staffing team in place, outcomes have
been positive and have demonstrated that the model is generally a successful one. As with
the previous year, improvements have been made with regards to the academic performance
of participating young people; and improved parental engagement is evident with regards to
the increased attendance of targeted parents at activities such as parents’ evenings and
meetings. Evaluations conducted at the end of Quarter 4 will assess whether parents now
feel more confident supporting their child with their education and whether they feel their child
is coping better at school, as a result of participating in the projects.

Whilst the CF PDG project staff have engaged, to varying degrees, with their local
Communities First teams, it has been identified that there is room for further improvement in
this area, to encourage greater links between the schools and their wider communities and to
ensure that the families identified are truly offered a holistic service whereby they are
supported both within the school and their local community. For example, further
improvement in the links with CF cluster teams will ensure that PDG project staff are more
informed about the services offered by CF within the community and thus are more able to
make appropriate referrals into projects designed to support families, in relation to a range of
needs including unemployment, health etc.

It has also been considered that, whilst the young people selected for the projects were
identified according to their potential to make improvements within a critical year in terms of
their educational achievement, there may also be some benefit in the project working with
young people from lower school years in the future. This would enable support to be put in
place for a longer period within their time at school and could also provide support at other
critical times such as the transition from year 6 to year 7.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

No impact assessment has been undertaken on this report, however many young people and
families, who fall under the protected characteristics and wider issues covered by the
Council’s Strategic Equality Plan, are often affected by the problems arising from poor
educational achievement and difficulties coping in schools, as a result of poor parental
engagement with school and a lack of parental confidence in supporting their child; therefore
the PDG projects will have positive impact on those individuals and groups.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

PDG staff salaries and associated delivery budgets are provided by the Welsh Government,
via the PDG fund with match funding by Communities First. The total amount claimed in
2014/15 was £400,000 with an expectation that a further £320,000 will be claimed by the end
of this financial year. The programme is currently funded until 31%' March 2016.

Page 21



7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

71 All staff working on the project are employed on a fixed term basis. The contracts will come to
an end when the project funding ceases.

8. CONSULTATIONS

8.1  All comments have been reflected in the report.

9. RECOMMENDATIONS
9.1 That members note the progress made in delivering the PDG match funded projects to date in

line with Welsh Government outcomes, as well as some of the main considerations outlined
above.

10. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1 To ensure members are kept up to date on the PDG match funded projects, their aims and
outcomes, in relation to educational achievement and family engagement witch schools.

11. STATUTORY POWER

11.1  Local Government Measure 2009.

Author: Tina McMahon, Community Regeneration Manager
Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer
Consultees: Chris Burns, Interim Chief Executive

Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer

Bleddyn Hopkins, Assistant Director, 21 Century Schools

Councillor R Passmore, Cabinet Member, Education and Leisure
Councillor W. David, Chair, Education for Life Scrutiny Committee
Councillor J. Pritchard, Vice Chair, Education for Life Scrutiny Committee
David Thomas, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities and Welsh Language)
Sue Richards, Finance Division

Lynne Donovan, HR

Background Papers:

Tackling Poverty Action Plan 2012 — 2016

Building Resilient Communities — Taking Forward the Tackling Poverty Action Plan
Effective Practice in Tackling Poverty and Disadvantage in Schools, Estyn 2012
Communities First Delivery Plans 2014/15 and 2015 /16

Caerphilly Delivers — The Single Integrated Plan

Page 22



P~




910z ApNUDF 8| PoOMIBPUN [

«dAWOSIMY LSNI Scdl "Fd0438

1734 | MOH Ol 3LISOddO 3131dWOD JHL S| HOIHM ‘S:NILIVW
IS IAVIT | NIHM NOILYDONAI NV JAVH TIIM | IVHL IN3QIINOD
7334 MON | 'LI @33N | 41 LdOddNS IAVH Od | IVHL ANV

SANIFIY4 INVW NV | LVHL IW LHONVI SVH 123rOdd ATIWVH
JHL ‘AVa FTONIS A¥IAT IL¥OddNS WY | MON 1Ndg 'IWOH

1V HLIM Tv3d OL AVH | IVHM ANV1S¥IANN OL d3sn AJOEGON
"IW LNOFV SFIVD ATININNIO INOIWOS INIT 1334 ATIVNIA ks

Page 24



N
\ ~ { PROOHDS ONY ¢4 05/05) ¥3HDVAL NOLINSA¥IINI SNOLYDHIYND = NILIVW

—~

TJOOHDS ANY 44 05705 33HDVIL NOILNIAYIINI HSITONI — M3Y¥VD N313H
TOOHDE ONY 44 0505 33HOVAL NOILNIAYILINI SHIVW — IZVYIHS AIWVH

G (£ ¥V3IA) SYWOHL
SINHD ANV (8 3VIA) JAVM ADNT ‘(6 IVIA) AYIAY INNVYIT (01 3VIA) SNVAT T ‘(L 1L ¥A) LLIINYVE WVS — ONINYVY3IT 40 SAVIH

AACINND 1O
G3UNMNa 100RD

43HSIH VANIT ANV LLIH43Vd VINVA — WV3L 38NLENN

v

INOE TOOHDES! HLIA333IW AJOVAL — 1SITVID3AdS VST N3S

La
(VF)
~
¢

F
L

INIWLOTIAIA 4IHSY3AVIT OOS) NOL1IE 31V — OON3Y
OHOS NVAY NOYVHS — OM3
D05 N3MO 31NNT — ¥3D1440 1¥30d4dNS TVIO0LSVd

S ANV 44 05705 TI3HDLIW ANNY3IT — LSITVID3dS VST WOOY ATIWYA
TOOHDS ONY 44 05/05) 10971VL YWW3 — 3OLNIW HLNOA ANV HOVOD ONINYVIT
OOHDS ANV 44 05705 NIMO VDDO343d — ¥301440 L¥0ddNS ATIWVL

AV AHL ONISOTD-1153 AOOMEIANN Of — ¥IOVNVW 123rodd

WVil 3HL e

Page 25



/
™

$8NSS] WS aYj SII0§ O0S|D OYM 13Yjoiq 1abunoh p spy ays

}ioMm pipxd Buisjduiod 104
pipMmal b SD 3lpooy b pajsanbal 0s sSaYjo|d> Mau piojjb §und ayg
awoy aAD3| 0}
3gD ¢ 19A3U [|IM 3Ys S|334 3Ys asnpI3¢ suopiidsp ou spy ayg
SOIIAIID
[pI20s Aup ul 3piind jusaop pup Appijoy uo uaag IdAaU sbYy ays
|pjidsoy o} ul )}ong paysni si WNW 3SR Ul ISNOY Y} dADI)|
0} PIDAJD UG SPY BYS 2SNDI3C PaidjNs SOY DUDPUID JOH
jnsai
D SD SPU3LL) OU SDY PUD SWOY }D UBYM I2iDd Wi} |[|n) O SI 3YS
[|! SI pPpP pub pajqpsip AJ219Aas SI Jayjo I3}
3J2UIPIJUOD 10 WIDI|SD J|@S OU SP
juabijjagul AjyBiy s
pjo si2A 9| S|

2UD[

N3JdATIHO ¥dNO

04 0L P34
ISD| SDUDPUBYY




\ b
7 70E9

DIUDRPUIHD

Fe

e s)

% 16T
tIDBA JSD|

DUDPUBYY

N3JddTIHD dNO

N | sasodind
[pid0S ._ho/m:o\..”_ Y} SOADI| Aj2ini pup AppIjOY U0 UD3( JOASU SDY BH
AomAup sjigauaq uo dn puas gsnl wiy ayi sioipi jjnp ‘prdngs,

S9AI|aq Y asnpI3q suolpiidsp ou spY §ng ‘||9M op o} 3jpiadsap sI Y
jooyds o} awpd Ajaipi 3y — aduanbasuod  sp paiajjns soY dDUDPUIKD SIY
pup sanssi [paipaw pub swajqosd H Aq pasnnd AjaIxXup a|qii19} SOy 3H
3j1] Siy ul s|japowu 9|04 a|bu

aAljIsod ou spy ay pup jooyds Aipwiad Ul SOM Y UBYM §J3] 13Yyip} SIH
sansal

Yi|pay [pjuawl 319A3S SDY OYM WINW SIY 10§ I340d dWil} [|n§ O OS|P SI :oms
Buiaaiydniapun Ajssolb wiy ui pagnsas soy pub

di§piId pub 3jgpidipasdun ‘aAIssaibBp uaaq sny jspd sy} uj JNOIADYIY SIH
sanssi

jsnij 1olpw Jo jnsai b Si SIY} pud jOOYdS Ul SPUdLLj Mdj AIBA SbY 3H
I3A20SIDYM 3dudpijuod ou spy jng ‘juabijjajul AldA-s|

pjo Sib3A 9| S|

uof



N

17

FFOYE YIM |
{12502 Bunjiom ain |

PUD SIU3aPN§S A3} !

Ay pajuiod uid mou

2ADY

aM pubp spidnd

I’ :mE\ﬂIw:o ) UHm sanss| Jjay4 Buissnasip ul 4104wod puly

sjuspnys asaym Huomiau pioddns 1oad b swodaq sOY §|
"ADP 3y} 10} PBA|OSDI
sonssi |plusjod Aup aApYy pup juasaid aip syuapnys
Bupinsua Jo Abm D SD J| SSN PUD PUBKD ||D HBUIDG WS

puo JasAW ‘[I2Y24iw 2uunai ‘joqip] bwwg ‘uam( P3G .
WOOJ B} O} Ul J|OM | UBYM SjUSAS pliom Buissnosip

uajjo a.4p sjidnd pup uo SADM|D SI SMBU DGY SYL
I3Yjoun 3uo JaYDb

dn 103> pub POy BAISS ‘DjuLIp Mpw of djay sjuspniS .

papiacid si jsopjoaig .

ipjndod Aiaa

S}l pup awWod o} pabrinodus 310 spuSPNIS WSH |V "WoQG /
wouy }a9m 3y} Jo Buiuiow AisAa sunt gnjd jsnppalg

! 1 1 A *
Nty | A . R 4
i :

eONIONVHD SIHL SI MOH

"19AD B} §Sa1) DY}
10} jooY2s |noqo
Addoy Buijasy

) pup pajioddns

os |99} A3y

"}l 8A0| pubp UJ
310 Aayj Bujusow
A1aA3 puayp
accn pup :o_.




"'J40439 NOILdO
NV SV ALISYIAINN AQIJIFAISNOD NIAT d3A3IN dVH
OHM SIN3IANLS 4O SNOILVIIdSY FHL A3SIVY SVH LI »

123r0dd

JHL 4O NOISS3S TVNI4 FHL NI SIHL W3O4 XDvded33d

ONILIVMY 38V IM ANV NOISS3S INIWIOVONST

TVINIIVL V ONIRING d3SN NIHL SYM SIHL

— STIIVNNOILSIND NDISIA Ol ID11DOVid OL NI LNd
JIIM STIDIS AINIVO ATMIN dIFHL JIFHM ZO_mmmwg
dN MOTIO4 V NI 1dVd NINVL IDNIS IAVH >m=.;n%u.

.z<o~_o<<io%
1O ALISY¥IAINA IHL NI @3SVd NOILYONGI AW @ITIvD
19370¥d V NI L¥Vd NINVL JAVH SINIANLS L1 IVIA

12901 uoinINpg AW

SNOILVUIdSV ONISIVY



D13 SYIAYvd

ANY SSNDSIA O HIOM 3131dWOD Ol INVM OHM

SIN3IANLS dO4 WdS-€ WOJI4 SdNHL — NOW WOu4
WOOJY ATIWVH FHL NI SNNJ 4N1D TOOHDS 4314V NV »

"S3SOO diFHL JO4

130ddNS NOILVOHEHITYNO ANV NOISIAZY 33ND3S

Ol 33d40O NI SAVAITOH d31SV3 FHL ANV SWJ3L 41VH
AVW ANV 934 ONIING GIdIAO¥d 39 OL INNILNODS
TIIM SIHL ANV Wd3l 4T7VH 3390100 OZ_w__Jn_M_ﬂWu
NOISIAO¥d 40 3IM V Q3IAIFDIY JAVH SINIANLS

UOISIAOI{ 1D|NJ1LINT) DIIX]




LT |
"LOVdWI 39NH V QVH SVH Ll — ONIAIT TVNOILVYIdSY IDNII¥IdX3
OL ALINNLIOddO FHL OS1V 1N9 ‘NOILYIIHITVYNO V JAIIHOV Ol S1idNd 3SIHL YO ALINNLIOIdO
JHL ATNO LON ‘@3aIAO¥d ANV $S320NS JAISSYW V SYM SIHL '3191SSOd SV NOILVIIHITVND
JHL 40 HONW SV 3131dWOD Ol AVA 11V XYOM OL AVH NIHL AFHL ‘AVAINLYS FHL NO

'STidNd 1NF¥IANOM ¥NO NO SN ILVINLVIONOD OL SN OL NILLIIM IAVH OHM “1318H
JHL NI Q3AVLS ATHL "ONINIAT JHL NI QIVMIY SV VIWINID FJHL ANV LNVINVLSIY V OL NIXVL me._.
JYIM AFHL 'AVA 1TV AINYOM ATHL JYIHM 341G¥VD ‘NNI AVAITOH FHL OL NINVL J43IM dnOAO FH1

‘(HOVOD ONINY¥VIT ANV JOLNIW HLNOA WS43) LO91VL YWW3 ANV ‘(3321440 LNIWIOVONS
ATIWV4) NIMO ¥DD393¥ 413SAW A9 AIINVAWODIIV F¥IM AFHL 'SNOILVYIIHITVNO dIFHL NO HIOM
Ol ¥3AYO NI ISUYNOD TVILNIAISIY V NO NIIVL J¥IM STHIO WS43 ‘T WYL 4TVH NWNLAY ONRING

USATIP DOAST - PUSISSMA [PHUSPISSY
SNOILVYUIdSYV ONISIV A




/(£
\)

7~ / _
340439 QIOVYONI NIIF ¥IAIN JAVH OHM siNTIvd I9VORKE OL QIOVNYW JAVH IM ANV 35V1d IAVL SINTIVA 304 SONINIOW 33440
Q3QIAOY¥d ONI3E LIOJdNS IHL ILVATVAI OL ¥3AIO NI JIYNNOILSIND V $IDNA0Id OSTV D39

STINNVYHD NOILYDINNWWOD dN dIN3IdO A11V3IY SYH ‘A SI OF A8 3DVSN INOHJ JTNIIOW

— Q3IDOVONI LINFAYH OHM FSOHL 3Od4 SONINIAI SLINIIVd dN JOW ONV SONINIAT SINIIVd LISIA IWOH dIaNIONI
OS1V SVH SIHL "SIN3dVd AIX JOVONI Q3d13H AT1Vv3IY JAVH SNOISSIS 3S3HL "SINIAT 3SIHL 404 31IS TOOHIS IHL ONIGNILLY HLIM
130ddNS d33N OHM SIN3IdVd HLIM SNOISSIS INO OlL INO S3AIAOdd OSTV ANV DNINIAI SINIFIVd §O4 FHDOIFAD V SISINVOIO O

SINOH ¥314V ANV AVQ TOOHDS FHL ONIINA Q3TN AVW AJHL 130ddNS
ANV 4O JAVH AYW AFHL SINSSI ANV SSNDSIA OL TOOHDS FHL OL IWOD NVD OHM SIN3IdVd dOd4 SINIWINIOddVY NI 4Odd SYH O¥

S3D1Ad3S TVIDOS

Qv SINVWOM

SAvVd

1D3rOdd ONIJIILNNIOA 292D
1d40ddNS Alwvd S.OQYVNVY
151 WOD ONIFETIIM
INIWIOVONIT ATIwvd

‘1d0ddNS 318ISSOJd 1538 JHL 3AIAOYd OL SIIDNIOV AdVSSIDIN ANV WIHL HLIM SHIOM ANV
S3MNIWV4 AT OL SLISIA d¥INDIY SIAYW OF "03AIIN LIO0ddNS IHL NO ONIANIIA SISVE ATIFIM/ANVA ¥V NO SINI¥Vd SIDVINOD Od

SINIYVd ONIOVONS

Page 32



™~ 2 _ '3SIHL IWODYIAO W3IHL d13H
NVD 3IM MOH ANV 3DV4 AFHL SAIIAVE ANV ANV WIHL IOVON3
Ol ¥3AYO NI 335 OL i1 ATNOM AIHL SIDIAYIS AFHL LVHM
1LNO9YV ‘SIAILVLINISIYAIY ADNIOV ANV S1idNd ¥NO A9 SAVM
JAILVIYD ANV NN4 A¥IA NI INOILSIND J¥IM ANV dILVdIDILYVd
SLINIYVd 11V "IWWVYOO0Ud (NOILYINAT AW FHL HLIM

MAOM ¥IFHL 40 L¥Vd SV ‘NOISSIS NOILVLINSNOD V aIYVdIdd
ANV GINNV1d QVH STidNd WS33 ¥NO J¥IHM TOOHIS FHL 40 LYVd
¥IHLONYV OL @3130DS3 NIHL 3¥IM SINIYVd "TVIW IHL ¥3EJV

‘MON TLLNN 311
100HDS NI 3IOVON3 OL 318VNN N338 JAVH 3M WOHM 30 ANVW
'SONITgIS ANV SLN3¥Vd 40 S135 61 FIOVONI OL GIDVNVIW IM

'$S300NS IONH V SVM LN3A3 3HL
“YINNIA SYWLISIIHD 304 SN NIOr OL ¥39W303a 4,6 AVASINAIM
NO TOOHDS 3HL OL Q3LIANI 3¥3IM WS43 L1 ¥V3A 40 SINI¥Vd 11V

SINIIVd ONIOVONI



N

70

e S0P
S| SOUDPUBHY
jSRlPs

S|OYAA Hus.1inD

\} SldNd JO4 SAFAAVE DIWIAVIV ANV TVID0S “IVNOILOWI NMOQA DNPIVIYE

ANV 3DNIAIINOD ONIATING SI LI — 3IDNVANILLY NO 1OVdWi 3ONH
YV ONIAVH S| Wy3l 3HL A9 TOOHDS NI d3137dWOD HJOM ONIFETIEIM FHL

AJVSSIDIAN JYIHM INTAIILINI ANV NOILVALIS FHL JOLINOW
NVD 3HS LVHL OS ININNIO SI NOSV3IY 41 Od 1DVINOD STidNd A3 IWOS

WV3L 3H1 40 11V A9 LNO d314dvD 34V SLISIA
IWOH ANV dN S1idNd A3X JDId OL 1NO LN3S SI SNd INIW TOOHDS 3HL

DI4I23dS ATHOIH ANV W3l 1dOHS SAVMTY 33V SNV1d 1idNd JHL

SADILON ALTVNGd
W31 A3Xid A3NSSI IAVH ANV HLIM LDOVINGD INVISNOD NI 33V >m_mcw

"‘AIAOYIWI S uuzéz&%

NdNd LYHL 33NSNI OL 3IDV1d NI SNV1d NOILNIAIIINI LNd ANV S1idNd
3SIHL JOLINOW NV JDVYL OL TOH IFHL HLIM A1ISOTD NJOM AIHL 'SINSSI
IDONVANILLY LVEWOD ATIAILDI443 OL WVAL V SV JIOM dS ANV Of ‘13 ‘'Od

JONVANILLV ONISIVY



N

(0, i

"319ISSOd JIATIIHM FONITTIVHD ANV 1dOddNS
~OL 43AY0 NI SIDIAYIS AIVSSIDIN ANV ANV ATIWYH TOOHDS “UdNd FHL HLIM A13SOTD SHIOM ANV
NOILNIAYILNI JO-4 SYIIV AN SAHILNIAI OHM ‘NIMO vDD393¥ OL NO SNV1d IHL SISSVd NIHL YWWA

"SNOISIDId

IN3IAN3IdIAN] AIWIOLNI IAVW OL STildNd SMOTIV ANV 3DONIAIINOD ANV W3I31S3 4735 S3SIVY Nanl NI
HOIHM “ONINYV3I1T NMO d13HL 304 J19ISNOCSIY 33V STIdNd LVHL FINSNI OL SINDINHDIL ONIJOLINIW
JAILYISSY SAOTdWI OSTV YWWI JAILIOLdNS AYIA HONOHLTV "SNOISSIS dNOYID ANY 1VNAIAIANI
HL1O9 HONOYHL ‘SISYE ALIIOId ¥V NO S1dNd HLIM SNOISSIS HOVOD ONINYVI1 SAT0H 1O91vL YWWA

IOV4 AVW 1VHL S331¥dve TYNOILOW3 4O
VIDOS DIWAAVYIVY ANV NAMOANVYIIE ANV AJILNIAI OL ¥30YO NI STdNd WS4 11V 3O4 @3sn ¥V 3SIHL

SNV1d ONINYV3IT TVNAIAIAGNI

Page 35



N

ONIFZ1713IM NO LOVdWI 39NH V ONIAVH AQVIYTV
S| ANV G3LNIOddV N334 SYH ‘Wv3l 3HL 4O 1¥Vd SV SHYOM OHM ‘OONIV MAN V -

TOOHOS 3HL NI ONIZFETIAM
40 NOISIAOYd IHL ANVdX3 OL1 ¥3AAYO NI ‘SYIAIAOUd ALINNWWOD HLIM SAIHSNOILV13Y
JYNO3IS ONIATING AV ANV SHNIT TVINIWVANNG 3AVW IAVH WVIL ANV Nr -

3OV1d NI STANSVIW LIOddNS FHL 40 IWOS LSNI I¥V SAIDNIOV TVILNISSI Ol SINI¥Vd
ONILSOdNOIS ANV SWIO04 NOILYDI1ddV LNO 1114 OL @3d13H ‘SNOISS3S ONITIISNNOD
d73H — SLNIY¥Vd d04d SIDIAYIS L¥OddNS A3AIAOYdd IAVH WVIL ATIWVL FHL -

SNOILNIAYILNI 43HLO

(<o)
™
o
(@)
Q)
ol



7N
7~ )1.

JON3AIINOD dling Ol SINIYVd WS4 404 dNOYD 9NS — Vid MIN V 40 NOILONAOYLNI FHL
SYINYVIT I18VAINTNA YO S3SSID0Ud NOILISNVYEL FAISNTONI IHOW

_ TOOHOIS 3HL 40 1NO SNINNNY
9Nn12 .SAVY1 ANV SAva, SV HONS ‘SIALLVILINI LINIWIOVONI a3svea ATIWVL 40 NOILONAOULNI 3HL

STidNd 133N 40 NOILNIAYILNI ANV NOILVYIIILNIAl ATV JHL

ONIAIT AHLTVIH ANV ADVY3lll
TVIISAHd NI SYINJV3IT ITEVIINTNA 3OVONT OL ¥3AYO NI SILITIOVE SLIOdS 40 LNIWIAO¥4dWI 3HL

TOOHIS ¥NO 40 LNO ONINNNY S123rodd disve ALINNWWOD 40 LNIWIAOYdWI IHL
STidNd WS4 HLIM LNIW3IATOANI = N3IO¥3ILNI 40 NOILONAOYLNI IHL

iFWOD Ol J40W

Page 37



s’

_ (3Y0DS SINIOd d3ddVD ¥NO IACH4WI
[ GTNOM SIHL) D - «V S3S09 +6 IFAIIHOV LON AVW LN9 '+Z7 FJAIIHOV OL A13XNIT ¥V 3O SIONVISNI
~ AWOS NI +Z 13A31 LON 1N9 T 13A3T FAIIHOV OL ATDIIT J¥3IM OHM STidNd N0 AV ‘€ dNOYD

o

(D=+V S3509 S ONIAIIHOV LON 40 ¥3IONVA NI) 3303019 T 13A31 3HL NO m:m\@

o

‘YVIA 1SV1 40 AN3 FHL LV ‘OHM STidNd 3HL 33V ANV STidNd ALINOI¥d ¥NO ¥V ISIHL °1L dNOYF

*+T ANV T ‘L 13A31 ONIAIIHOV 40 IDNVHD ANV ALITIEV ¥iFHL OL ONIQ¥OIDV
a3idnoyod JY¥IM S1idNd ‘'Viva 40 SISATYNV HLd3d NI HONOYHL STidNd ONISSISSY ATIN4IAVD Y314V

(L1 3VIA NO ATLNIIAIND SNDO4 NIVW) ~
o INIWIAIIHDV ,

e ¥ ame



7~

%CE %V € %ET +T 19A9]
%08 %L %Y A il
%001 %96 %¥v8 | [9A9]

DIPP S 10Z A|nr o} Buipiodp —
INIWIAIIHOV 1S3 WSd L1 4P3A

sainbi4 syabin)

jooYdS

pajo|ndiys oYM

*SMOT104 SV Av3Y 11 'VIAV A3 SIHL NI 3AVW LON SYM LNIWIAOUdWI AIdVY di 'S1IDYVL
dNO 133W LON ATNOM IM LVHL d31S399NS ¥V3IA FHL 40 ONINNIO3E FHL 1V Vivd IHL

(LL ¥VIA NO ATLNIYIND SNDOH)
INIWIAIIHOV

Page 39



(@ | el

%TE %VvE %T6'9T %¢ET +T |9A9]
%0S %94 %40°€L %9 C [2A97
%001 %96 %9v'88 %v8 L 12827

Page 40

sainbi4y | suonndyi|pnb RIPP S 10T AInr o4
paip|ndig sjobin) R1X3 Buipi030 — | NJWIAIIHDV
OVM ke g L il i g 153 WSH L1 1P3A

eNVIW SIHL d1NOD LVHM



\
\l/

-~

%*¥€ 39 ATIVILNILOd A1NOD 11 HAVWIY ¥04 NI
YIHLONV HLIM SHLVW Z1 ¥13HL @INIVO ST1idNd WS43 40 % L€ LVHL MOHS S11NS3 Y

NV 19 NO S11NS3Y¥ IDNIS AINDISSY 33 SdNOYD ANV @3SSISSVIY NIFF SYH SIHL — SWOOI NOILNIAIILINI
VILIX3 OML HLIM QIAIAO¥d NIIG JAVH ANV 2O LN L SHIVW WO 13d0ddNS VaLX3 AINNILNOD JAVH THIM

ATINGFIVD AYIA IDNVANILLY dIJOLINOW ANV
SIHL OL S1idNd Q3LYODST 11S — AVANOW ¥V NO NOSSIT HLXIS AJOSTNdWOD V HLIM S11dNd d3AIAOId 3AVH

Wa3L 41VH ONIRING STIdNd 404 NOILNIAYILINI dNOYD TTIVYWS QISNOH NIAT ANV IWIL TOOHDS NI A13AILD3443
d3asn N339 SVH SIHL — NI A9 STidNd 319VIINTNA JIHLO ANV WS4 JO4 A3IAINOYd 1d0d4dNS ValX3 AVH

WVX3 HOV3 330439 AvA 3HL 3SIATY OL STidNd [ L dVIA HLIM 3FT18VLIIWIL 440 AVA
34390100 NI ONINIAI SINIdVd VILX3

(QIANILLY S1dNd 11V) 33GWIAON NI AJINT A1dV3I 304 d3LdO

SHLVW

¢+C 13A31 IAOUdWI OL ONIOQd IM AV LVHM

Page 41



N A

JO4 SINNODDV 1l %0 IHL WOI4 JdVYW
319ISSOd 1539 IHL IAVH STidNd LVHL J¥NSNI OL NI A9 AFJOLINOW SI INIWSSISSY AITTIOJLINOD

Q10T HOIVW g€ NO QINSSI 33V S1INSIY NIHM FANLONYLS L1dOddNS SSIASSVIA TIIM

AIVANYT NI WOOY NOILNIAYILINI VI1Xd
NV HLIM Q3AIAO¥d 39 TTIM ANV MIIVD NIT1TH WOIH LIOddNS VILX3 AINNILNOD FAVH TIIM

ATINFAVD AYIA IDNVANILLY JOLINOW ANV SIHL Ol
ST1dNd LIODST L11S — AVANOW ¥V NO NOSSIT HIXIS AJOSINdWOD V HLIM STidNd d3TIAOYdd JAVH

SdNd A313DYVI Ld0OddNS OL IWIL TOOHDS NI AT3AILDI443 A3SN
39 TIM SIHL 'STidNd F19VIINTNA dIHLO ANV WS4 404 LIO4dNS VALX3 AIAOTIWI 1SNI JAVH

WVX3 HOV3 330439 Ava IHL 3SIATY OL STIdNd | L dVIA HLIM F18V1IWIL 440 Avd
AIVNNYI NI AYLINT ATV §O4 d3LdO

HSITONZ

¢+C 13A3T IAOUdWI OL ONIOQd IM 34V LVHM

Page 42



- —

%TE %PvE
%0¢S %94
%001 %96

sainbi4

p
ap|ndyyg | syabin)

OVM jRONS

%P8'ES

= %9°'vE %LT % T
%L£0'€L %T9 %8%
%9¥°88 %88 %88

sSuo

JUBAIBJUJ (102
D1§x3 (9102 jdag) u

YHMm | upf) BIPP | OlI3)|0)
|[PlUdjod | juddin) p}pQ

%ET - +T [oA9]
%9 z 1991
%¥8 L 19A9]

RIPP S 10T

A|np o} Buipiodp
= LNIW3IA3IIHOV
153 WSd L1 1P3A

¢NVIW SIHL dTNOD 1VHM

—

-

-

i



(i A )

~ -
STANLNG YIFHL FJAOULWI
/ ANV SNOILV¥IdSV ¥IFHL 3SIVY TTIM LVHL SIONIRIIdXI HLIM STIdNd 3AIAOY¥d OL INNILNOD

-~ SAYINYVIT F1GVAININA
40 LN3W3A3IHOV 3FHL NO ATLVIYO LOVAWI ANV JAILO3d43 ANV LNILSISNOD 4V
SW3LSAS LVHL OS ‘ALIDVAVD FJAO¥dWI O1 ‘WV3IL ONIFE1TIM V ONIG1ING SAGIVMOL IAOW

SYINYVIT FTIVIINTNA 40 SNOILVLIOIAd X3
HOIH 3AVH 44V1S T1V 1VHL ANV G3IAO¥dWI SI ONINYVIT ANV ONIHOVIL 3ANSN3I

SUINYVIT
TV 304 WNTNIIAIND JAISNTONI ANV 319VLINS V ONIAIAOY¥d NO XJOM OL INNILNOD

LNIWIAOU4WI
dO4 SVYIYV AIN A4ILNIAI OL ¥30YO0 NI V1ivA JOLINOW ANV OVl OL 3NNILNOD

SdNOYO ¥VIA 11V OL LNO AITTO¥ ONIIE MON AV LJOddNS ANV SNOILNIAYILNI

SINIOd A3

ddVMAO4 ONIAOW

Page 44



Agenda ltem 9

N
CAERPHILLY

COIINTY BOROUIGH COENCIE
CYNGOR BWRIDEISTIREF STIROL

CAERFFILY
4

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
23RD FEBRUARY 2016

SUBJECT: CONSULTATION - PROPOSED ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS
2017/2018

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR — EDUCATION AND LIFELONG LEARNING

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To consult Members on the proposed changes to the Schools Admission Arrangements for
the academic year 2017/2018.

1.2 To give Scrutiny Members the opportunity to comment on proposals as part of the
consultation process before recommendations are considered by Cabinet at its meeting
1 April 2016.

2, LINKS TO STRATEGY

21 Ensuring that the Authority’s Admission Arrangements are reviewed to meet the needs of
schools and the Authority and comply with relevant legislation.

3. THE REPORT

3.1 Members will recall that they are consulted annually regarding the proposed Admission
Arrangements. There are no proposed changes to the attached Admission Arrangements for
2017/18.

3.2 The consultation process has been taking place over the last couple of months and ends on 1
March in accordance with the Code. Consultees have included all Headteachers, all Chairs of
Governors and all neighbouring LAs, as well as CCBC’s Admission Forum and Scrutiny
Committee.

3.3 In accordance with paragraph 2.10 of the Code, the admission arrangements must be
determined by 15 April and will be considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 30 March 2016.

4, EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The Admission Arrangements for 2017/18 have been assessed and no negative impact has

been identified. The arrangements note compliance with current Equalities, Human Rights
and Welsh Language legislation.

Page 45



5.1

6.1

7.1

7.2

8.1

9.

9.1

10.

10.1

Author:
E-mail:

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATIONS
The Admission Forum meets termly to review all Admission arrangements and procedures.

Other consultees are as outlined below and in the report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are asked to consider the report and provide any comments as part of the
consultation process.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

To ensure agreed changes are implemented for September 2017.

STATUTORY POWER

The School Admissions Code (2013) and Schools Admissions Appeal Code (2013).

Andrea West, School Admissions and Exclusions Manager
westam@caerphilly.gov.uk

Consultees: Chris Burns, Interim Chief Executive

Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer

Bleddyn Hopkins, Assistant Director, 21%' Century Schools

Councillor R Passmore, Cabinet Member, Education and Leisure
School Admission Forum

Sue Richards, Principal Officer Finance

Lynne Donovan, Head of People Management and Development
David Thomas, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities and Welsh Language)
Susan Ead, Solicitor, Legal Services

Headteachers and Chairs of Governors, CCBC schools

Neighbouring LAs.

Appendix: Proposed Admission Arrangements for 2017/18

Page 46



APPENDIX 1

R
LARREHILEY
CAERFFILY
7

Directorate of Education and Lifelong Learning

Admission
Arrangements For
2017/18

Directorate of Education and Lifelong Learning

Changing Lives, Building Futures ¢ Newid Bywydau, Creu Dyfodol

Page 47



APPENDIX 1

Primary & Secondary Education
Admission & Transfer Arrangements

In line with the School Standards and Framework Act 1998, subsequent legislative
updates and Welsh Governments (WGs) Schools Admissions Code, these
admission arrangements will aim to ensure that:

Parent’s preference for the schools of their choice is considered in the context
of a legislative framework, which has regard to the provision of efficient
education and the efficient use of resources;

Admissions criteria are clear, fair and objective, for the benefit of all children
including children with special educational needs or with disabilities;

Local admission arrangements contribute to improving standards;

The Local Authority (LA) consults with neighbouring Admission authorities and
co-ordinates arrangements, including the rapid reintegration wherever
reasonable of children who have been excluded from other schools;

Parents have easy access to helpful admissions information;

The LA’s admission arrangements seek to achieve full compliance with all
relevant legislation and guidance, including legislation on infant class sizes
and equal opportunities (Equalities Act 2010, the Human Rights Act 1998 and
the Welsh Language Act 1993) and take full account of the guidance in the
Code issued by the Welsh Government;

The Equality Act 2010 and Caerphilly County Borough Council’'s (CCBC)
Strategic Equality Plan emphasises the legal general duty the Council and its
partners have to:-

- Eliminate unlawful discrimination.

- Promote equal opportunities.

- Promote good relations and mutual respect.

This Council will work actively against discrimination and seek to create equal
access to its services for all, irrespective of ethnic origin, sex, age, marital
status, sexual orientation, disability, gender reassignment, religious beliefs or

non-belief, language, nationality, responsibility for any dependents or any
other reason which cannot be shown to be justified.

Page 48



APPENDIX 1

Choosing a School

The entry of children to schools is controlled and administered by an ‘Admissions
Authority’. In the case of Community Schools, this is the Caerphilly County Borough
Council (the LA). In the case of the one Voluntary Aided School (St. Helen’s Roman
Catholic Primary School) and one Foundation School (Cwmcarn High School) the
Admissions Authority is the Governing Body of the school. Within the County
Borough,

each school has an area that it traditionally serves called the “catchment area”. In
line with legislation, LA’s must allow all parents the opportunity to express a
preference for the school they wish their child to attend.

Pupils who reside within a defined catchment area of a school do not have an
automatic right to attend that school. A written application must be made and
the placements will be allocated in accordance with the LA’s admissions
procedure.

Parents may exercise their right to express a preference at the following times:

e on admission to an infant school or the infant department of a primary school.
Nursery admissions are dealt with in Section 1.2.

¢ on transfer from infant to junior school or infant school to junior department of
a primary school.

e on transfer from junior or primary to secondary school.
e when parents wish to transfer their child from one school to another.

Parents may also express a preference for their child to attend a Voluntary Aided
School or a Foundation School.

The LA (in the case of Community Schools) and School Governing Body (in the case
of Voluntary Aided and Foundation Schools) must comply with any preference, which
is expressed, provided there is room within the school. However the decision to
admit pupils, must take account of:-

¢ the overall provision of efficient education and efficient use of resources.

e whether it is a co-educational or single sex school.

e Section 87 of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998 (and
subsequent legislative updates and WGs schools Admissions Code), which
also allows an admission authority to refuse to comply with parental
preference for a period of two years following a second or subsequent

exclusion.

¢ where to admit would be incompatible with the duty to meet Infant class size
limit of 30 because the admission would require measures to be taken to

Page 49



APPENDIX 1

comply with those limits which would cause prejudice to efficient education or
efficient use of resources.

The local catchment areas for schools providing primary education are normally
grouped together to form a linked catchment area for each maintained secondary
school.

Admission or attendance of pupils at the feeder junior / primary school does
not provide automatic entry to the chosen secondary school. All parents are
required to complete admission forms at the appropriate time.

All schools within the LA aim to provide their pupils with an educational opportunity,
which is best suited to each individual child. Some pupils will, however, have
learning needs requiring special educational provision. In some instances parents
will already be receiving specialist support and guidance regarding the choice of
school for their child.
All parents, however, are encouraged to discuss possible areas of concern with their
local Headteacher who may then seek specialist advice.
Welsh Medium Schools
All of the above arrangements apply equally to Welsh Medium schools within the
Authority. Admission to Welsh medium primary schools is not dependant upon the
parents or pupils being fluent Welsh speakers.
There are currently 11 Welsh medium primary schools within the LA whose
catchment areas cover the entire LA’s boundary and are not restricted to the
catchment areas of the local English medium school. Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni will
provide Welsh medium secondary education to all CCBC resident pupils, subject to
parental preference.
Admission Limit
All maintained schools will admit pupils up to their admissions number.
A child will normally be offered admission to the school of the parents’ preference
unless applications exceed the admission number, when this occurs all applications
for that school will be assessed against the oversubscription criteria.
The normal ages for admission to CCBC schools are:-

e Age 3/4 in Nursery

e Age 4/5 in Infant and Primary Schools

e Age 7/8 in Junior Schools;

Page 50



APPENDIX 1

e Age 11/12 in Secondary Schools.

The LA’s policy is to provide all 3/4 year old children in the Caerphilly County
Borough an entitlement to a funded part-time nursery place at their local infant or
primary school.

Oversubscription Criteria - these apply to all admissions to oversubscribed
schools

1. Looked After Children (children in public care) and those who were
previously Looked After Children.

2. Those children who live in the school’s catchment area on or before the
published closing date.

3. Children with siblings (brothers and sisters) living in the same household
attending the school in September 2017. The sibling must be of statutory
school age. A sibling is a child who is the brother/sister, half brother/sister
(children who share on common parent/carer), step brother/sister where two
children are related by marriage. This definition also includes adopted or
fostered children living at the same address.

5. After taking account of the above categories, priority will be based on the
closeness to the school measured by the LA’s G.1.S (Geographical
Information System) database. Distance is measured from the nearest
entrance or gate of the home to the nearest gate or entrance of the school. If
the LA has the situation where any home addresses calculate the same
distance then a trundle wheel will be used to establish the nearest address.
When considering whether a child lives in a school’s catchment area, the
address considered is that of the parent or legal guardian, irrespective of a
family’s domestic arrangements. i.e. the address of another relative or
childminder etc. must not be given. In certain cases it may be necessary to
provide evidence relating to the child(ren) in question, to show the home
address of the child(ren).

Children of UK service personnel will be treated as in catchment if their application
form is accompanied by an official Ministry of Defence (MOD) letter declaring a
definite return date and confirmation of the new address.

Pupils from outside the school's catchment area will be admitted in accordance with
parental preference if the Admission Number of the school, class or unit has not
been reached and, if selection is necessary, the criteria shown above will be used.

Where parents have shared responsibility for a child, and the child lives with both
parents for part of the week then the home address will be determined as the
address where a child lives for the majority of the week (e.g. 3 out of the 5 school
days). Parents will be required to provide documentary evidence to support the
address they wish to be considered for allocation purposes.

Page 51



APPENDIX 1

Multiple Birth Children (e.g. twins or triplets)

If when applying the oversubscription criteria the last child to be admitted is one of a
multiple birth e.g twin or triplet then the LA will also admit the other sibling(s).

Waiting Lists

Following the allocation of places during the normal admission round any pupil that is
refused admission to an oversubscribed school will remain on a waiting list for
placement until the 30" September of that school year. Placements will then be
allocated according to the Authority’s oversubscription criteria.

After the 30™ September parents will need to make a new application for admission
to their preferred school.

Organisation of Schools
1. Primary Education

Every child is required by law to receive full time education from the beginning of the
school term after his/her fifth birthday. In CCBC, however, all children are able to
start school full time at the beginning of the school year (September) in which they
become five i.e. between the 1st September and the 31% August. Parents are able to
defer the start of a child until the term following their fifth birthday.

All children are able to attend school on a part time basis in the September following
their third birthday. Children between the ages of 3/4-11 are recognised as pupils
receiving primary education. In Caerphilly County Borough, primary education is
provided either in separate infant or junior schools, or in primary schools with one
complete 3/4 -11 age range.

Reduction of Infant Class Sizes

Choosing a school for the first time for a young child is especially important, both for
parents and for children themselves. In accordance, with Infant Class Size
Legislation, infant classes at a maintained school should contain no more than 30
pupils where a teaching session is managed by a single qualified teacher (or where
the session is managed by more than one qualified teacher, no more than 30 pupils
for every teacher).

1.1 Admission to an Early Years Placement at a Nursery School
Children born between the 1% September and the 31% March or Good Friday
depending on which date falls the latest maybe entitled to an Early Years placement

(term after their 3" birthday) at their local Primary/Infant school dependant on
availability.

Page 52



APPENDIX 1

Where a school has reached their Admission Number in their current nursery and
where the in catchment pupils exceed 70%, only pupils who reside within the schools
catchment area will be admitted into an Early Years placement.

Please note that admission into an Early Years place in either the Spring or
Summer term does not entitle your child to continue education in the nursery
year at the school. An application for admission into the nursery year at the
school will need to be made at the relevant time.

1.2 Admission to Nursery Year

The number of places available in a nursery year is set by the LA and the decision
whether to admit your child will be taken in accordance with the LA’s guidelines,
which follow.

Pupils who are admitted to a nursery year, will not have an “automatic” right to
continued education within that school. A formal application must be made for
entry into the reception year at the appropriate time. Applications for
admissions should be made before 28" February 2017. For any assistance,
please contact Mrs. Andrea West, School Admissions and Exclusions Manager
or other members of the team on the following telephone 01443 864870,
864897 and 864896.

1.3 Admission to an Infant School or Infant Department within a Primary
School

Pupils who attain the age of five during the school year may be admitted to an infant
school/department, at the commencement of the school year in September.

Pupils admitted to a separate infant school will not have an ‘automatic’ right to
continued education at the feeder Junior School which serves the same catchment
area. Whilst every effort will be made to accommodate such pupils, a formal
application must be made for transfer to the Junior school at the appropriate time.

Applications for admissions should be made before 16th December 2016. For any
assistance, please contact Mrs Andrea West — School Admissions and Exclusions
Manager Telephone: 01443 864870 or other members of the team on the following
numbers 01443 864896, 864897 and 864806.

1.4  Transfer to Junior Schools

Children enter or transfer to a Junior School on the first day of the Autumn term
following their seventh birthday. In Primary Schools the infant and junior sections are
simply departments of the same school and children progress through the school
from the infants to juniors without having to transfer elsewhere.

Whilst every effort will be made to accommodate such pupils, a formal application
must be made for transfer to the Junior school at the appropriate time.

Page 53



APPENDIX 1

Applications for admissions should be made before 16th December 2016. For any
assistance, please contact Mrs Andrea West — School Admissions and Exclusions
Manager Telephone: 01443 864870 or other members of the team on the following
numbers 01443 864896, 864897 and 864806.

1.5 Changing Schools: Primary Education

Changing schools during primary education is a significant step for your child to take.
In the case of moving the family home, such a decision may well be a necessity and
you will need to contact your local school or the Directorate of Education and
Lifelong Learning for assistance. If, however, you would like your child to transfer
from one school to another, please contact your present Headteacher first. Should
you still wish to proceed with these transfer arrangements; you must apply in writing
to Mrs. Andrea West, School Admissions and Exclusions Manager, Ty Penallta,
Tredomen Park, Ystrad Mynach, CF82 7PG Tel: 01443 864870.

If there is a suitable vacancy, your child will be admitted to the school. Parents
should note, however, that classes may include more than one age group and the
Headteacher will have the task of locating your child in the most appropriate class.

2. Admission to Secondary Schools

Children normally transfer from primary school to secondary school at the beginning
of the school year following their eleventh birthday. If your child was born between
1st September 2005 and 31st August 2006 she/he will transfer to secondary school
in September 2017. Headteachers of primary schools will be able to inform parents
of the secondary school which their children should normally attend. Whilst every
effort will be made to accommodate pupils, an application must be made for transfer
to secondary schools at the appropriate time. Applications for admissions should be
made before 21st October, 2016.

21 Changing Secondary School

Changing secondary schools is a significant step for your child to take. In the case of
moving the family home, such a decision may well be a necessity and you will need
to contact your local school or the Directorate of Education and Lifelong Learning for
assistance. If however, you would like your child to transfer from one secondary
school to another, please contact your present Headteacher first. Should you still
wish to proceed with these transfer arrangements; you must contact the Directorate
of Education and Lifelong Learning for advice in making your application, which will
then be required in writing. In considering your request for transfer, the LA will review
the number of pupils in the year group relevant to your child. If the child is in years
10 or 11, the range of subject options chosen may also be a factor. If that particular
year has not reached the school’s admissions number, then your child will be
admitted to the school. Parents should note, however, that curriculum option choices
may vary from school to school.

Page 54



APPENDIX 1

Applying for a Place

When you apply for a place at a particular school, you must complete the relevant
application form, which is available at the school. You must apply by the closing
dates shown below for admission in September 2017. The LA will inform you
whether or not it is possible for your child to attend your preferred school. Each
school produces a prospectus, which contains relevant information including school
aims and educational beliefs, the organisation of the school and curriculum
opportunities, including out of school activities. This school prospectus is available
from the Headteacher.

Timetable for admissions to schools September 2017

The proposed timetable to process applications for Secondary
schools for September 2017 is:

Admission Forms distributed to parents
9th September 2016

Forms returned to LA

21st October 2016

Parents notified of outcome

15 March 2017

The proposed timetable to process applications for Primary schools for
September 2017 is:

Admission Forms distributed to parents
6th November 2016

Forms to be returned to LA

16th December 2016

Parents notified of outcome

28th February 2017

The proposed timetable to process applications for Nursery schools for
September 2017 is:

Admission Forms sent to parents
13th January 2017

Forms to be returned to LA

28th February 2017

Parents notified of outcome after the
15 May 2017

Late Applications

Any applications that are received after the closing date for admission will be refused
if the school is oversubscribed unless the family has just moved into the catchment
area and the application is received before the offer of places are made. If the
application is received after the places have been offered and documented evidence

Page 55



APPENDIX 1

is provided to demonstrate that the family have moved into the catchment area of the
school the pupil will be given higher priority on the waiting list. Places will then be
allocated using the Authority’s oversubscription criteria.

Withdrawing Offers of Places

The offer of a school place will be withdrawn on the basis of a fraudulent or
intentionally misleading application being received (e.g. falsely claiming to reside
within a catchment area of a school).

What Happens if your Child is Refused a Place?

In the vast majority of cases children are offered places at their parents’ first choice
of school. If, however, your child is unable to gain admission, you will need to decide
whether you are willing to accept a place offered at a different school, or whether you
wish to continue with your first application. If you choose the latter course, you may
appeal to an Independent Appeal Panel. This Independent Appeal Panel will judge
whether the school is full and, should that be the case, whether the parent’s
application is so strong that the child should still be offered a place. Before you
appeal, please consider the LA’s admissions criteria (outlined previously on page 5).
It should be noted that Nursery age pupils have no right of appeal.

Registering your Appeal

You may make a formal appeal against the LA’s decision, but this must be received
within 28 calendar days of you being notified of the decision not to admit your child to
your chosen school. You should forward this appeal in writing, to the Directorate of
Education and Lifelong Learning. The LA will refer the appeal to the Council’s Legal
Department who will arrange for the appeal to be heard by an Independent Appeal
Panel and will set a time and place for the hearing. The Panel will afford parents an
opportunity of appearing and making their representations (oral and/or written).
Parents are advised that agencies such as SNAP & ACE are available to provide
assistance in making appeals.

Parents are able to seek admission to an alternative school while they are pursuing
an appeal.

Page 56



APPENDIX 1

Parents, however, are advised that: -

1. they may elect not to attend the appeal meeting and, instead, allow the appeal
to be considered on a written statement;

2. the appeal will be decided on the information available if, having failed to give
a reasonable explanation, they do not appear,

3. they will be given at least fourteen days (from the date of posting) written
notice of the meeting of the Appeal Panel;

3. they are welcome to be accompanied by a friend, or represented by a
solicitor, but that, in the latter case, the Directorate of Education and Lifelong
Learning should be informed at least seven days before the hearing. Please
note that a separate Appeal Panel hears appeals against decisions of the
Governing Body of a Voluntary Aided or Foundation School. Guidance on
such an appeal should, therefore, be sought from the school concerned.
Please note that limitations will be placed on the powers of the appeal panel
to allow appeals against the refusal to admit a child to a school where infant
class size legislation applies. The LA will not consider a second admission
application unless there is a significant change in circumstances (which will
need to be evidenced).

Sixth Form Admissions

The admission of Sixth Form pupils to Community Schools is determined by
individual schools. Therefore applications should be made directly to the school.

Disability Discrimination

The Council has in place an Accessibility Strategy, which details how the Council will
meet its duties under the Equality Act 2010 and preceding Disability Discrimination
legislation.

The Strategy covers all aspects of accessibility including access to premises,
curriculum and written information. The strategy contains the Council's plans to
improve physical access to school premises across the borough to minimise the
barriers to disabled pupils accessing education. In a number of cases due to the
topography of a school site, it may not be deemed accessible for a child with a
physical disability. In such cases parents/guardians will be provided with the details
of the nearest accessible school which is able to meet the child’s needs.

Admissions forms are screened by Education in order to highlight any children with
medical condition/physical disability. Parents will be contacted at the earliest
opportunity to discuss the child’s needs and a suitable school placement will be
considered.

The School and Officers of the Council work closely with parents to ensure that

detailed assessments are in place to support the inclusion of pupils, where possible
within their chosen school.

Page 57



APPENDIX 1

Usage of Accommodation
The LA continually reviews the usage of accommodation at all Infant, Junior and

Primary schools and subsequently updates the Capacity and Admission Number to
reflect this review.

Page 58



Agenda ltem 10

A
CAERPHILLY

COUINTY BORODUGH COLUINCILE
CYNGODOR BWRIDEISTREF STIROL

CAERFFILY
4

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
23RD FEBRUARY 2016

SUBJECT: EDUCATION CAPITAL 2016/17

REPORT BY: CHIEF EDUCATION OFFICER

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To update Members on proposals for the 2016/17 Education Capital Programme which are
planned to be considered by Cabinet on 30 March 2016.

2, SUMMARY

2.1 The report identifies proposals for the allocation of Education capital budgets for the 2016/17
financial year in the context of the 3 year capital programme 2016/17 —2018/19.

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1 The report considers the use of capital resources within Education to ensure the Council’s key
strategies are best achieved.

3.2 The report links directly to the Education for Life, sustainability, regeneration and equality
strategies. The report also links to the Learning theme of Caerphilly Delivers, the Local
Service Board single integrated plan.

4., THE REPORT

4.1 Special Council, at its meeting on 24 February 2016, will consider a medium term financial
strategy 2016/17-2018/19. The current draft proposals include a 3 year indicative forward
capital programme for Education, as follows (based upon Cabinet report 16 February 2016):

Scheme Indicative
2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19

£000 £000 £000
Accommodation Requirements 225 225 225
Asset Management Strategy 600 600 600
Health and Safety 300 300 300
School Security 100 100 100
School Boiler Replacement Programme 220 220 220
Total 1,445 1,445 1,445

Page 59



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

47

4.8

Scrutiny, at its meeting on 24 February 2015, were apprised of the budgetary pressures being
faced in the context of electrical rewiring works (rolling programme).

A sum of £2m towards electrical rewiring works in schools was allocated from the agreed
programme amount over the 3 year period 2014/15-2016/17, funded as follows:

Asset Management 300k p.a.= 900k
Health & Safety 300k p.a. in 2015/16 + 2016/17 = 600k
School Security and Boiler Replacement 250k p.a. in 2015/16 + 2016/17 = 500k.

On this basis, the residual capital budget available for 2016/17 is as follows:

2016/17
£000
Additional Accommodation 225
Asset Management 300
School Boiler Replacement 70

The revenue/capital (50/50) budget is presently 329k.
The detailed proposals for 2016/17 are outlined below.
Additional Accommodation

As in recent years, the annual capital allocation equates to circa 1 additional classroom per
annum. Trinity Fields School has been identified for priority in 2016/17.

There are currently 133 pupils on roll, 3 over the school’s agreed capacity of 130. This number
includes 6 in the satellite class at Cwm Ifor Primary. There will be 11 school leavers in the
summer 2016. The LA’s specialist placement panel has already agreed that 18 pupils meet
criteria for placement in line with the statutory assessment process.

Requests are also received from other LA’s for placements. Whilst the LA can refuse,
placements can be directed by Tribunals and LA’s can according to law name a placement in
any maintained school.

Asset Management

The sum of £300,000 for 2015/16 is proposed to be allocated to the identified highest
priority schemes, based upon the school condition surveys, as follows:

Priority 1 £000
Crumlin Primary - upgrade stone walls 20
Cwm Glas Infants - roofing (phase 1) 50
Deri Primary - upgrade stone walls 20
Fleur de Lis Primary - upgrade stone walls 20
Llanfabon Infants - flat roof renewal 18
Tiryberth Primary — slate roof renewal (commence programme) 20
St. Cenydd - flat roof renewals + upgrade (2 demountables) 45
193
Priority 2D
St. Cenydd - ceilings — main block 50

Page 60



H&S Priority
Maesycwmmer Primary — flooring 20
Newbridge Comprehensive - flooring 40

School Boiler Replacements (70k)

4.9 There are 5 priority schemes identified. The proposal is to undertake upgrades at each school
with estimated costs of 15k each.

Derwendeg Primary
Glyngaer Primary
Hendredenny Park Primary
Libanus Primary

Ynysddu Primary.

Revenue/Capital

410 ltis proposed to utilise these monies to support schemes funded 50/50 with schools, as below:

School £
Bedwas Infants — emergency lighting 12,000
Bedwas Junior — stone walls 12,000
Cefn Fforest Primary — render/damp penetration 20,000
Cwmaber Junior - adaptations 20,000
Cwmfelinfach Primary — windows 20,000
Deri Primary — fascias, soffits and rainwater goods 25,000
Glyngaer Primary — ceiling replacement (junior) 25,000
Fochriw Primary — stone walls 12,000
Graig y Rhacca Primary — flooring 23,000
*Hendre Junior — improved access arrangements 20,000
*Hendredenny Primary — perimeter fencing 30,000
*Nantyparc Primary — security gates 16,000
Nantyparc Primary — roofing 12,000
Nantyparc Primary — year 1 toilets 10,000
Penllwyn Primary — windows and doors replacement 10,000
Phillipstown Primary — flat roof renewal 12,000
Phillipstown Primary — ceiling replacement 12,000
Plasyfelin Primary — internal modifications 20,000
Pontllanfraith Primary — drain repairs 20,000
*Pontllanfraith Primary — replacement of railings 30,000
St. Gwladys Primary — soffits, guttering and fascias 20,000
Tiryberth Primary — upgrading slate roofs 12,000
*Trinant Primary — playground resurfacing 30,000
*Trinity Fields — door access system 24,000
Twyn Primary — window replacement (phased programme) 40,000
Whiterose Primary — site improvements 20,000
YGG Y Castell — toilet upgrades 20,000
Waunfawr Primary — windows and lighting 20,000
Rhymney Comp — phase 2 roofing 90,000
*St. Cenydd Community — security fencing and gates 50,000
St. Cenydd Community — refurbish demountables 20,000
St. Cenydd Community — refurbish science lab 40,000
St. Martins Comprehensive — toilet upgrades 60,000
807,000

Page 61



4.1

412

413

4.14

5.1

52

5.3

6.1

6.2

7.1

8.1

9.1

The schemes marked with an asterisk are proposed to include funding from risk management
('5) as well as schools and LA of '/; each also.

The proposals in their entirety would commit 50k over the available budget. It is usual for a
small number of schemes to not proceed due to affordability. In the event that the budget is
overspent, it is recommended to fund £50,000 from LMS contingency to supplement the
budget.

Flying Start Capital

The Welsh Government (WG) has in most recent years approved a number of bids from the
Authority.

It is anticipated the LA will be bidding for a small amount for maintenance of current buildings
in 2016/17.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

Many of the initiatives contained within the Education capital budget seek to address equality
issues.

The LA has an obligation under section 88 and Schedule 10 of the Equality Act 2010 to
prepare an accessibility strategy. This is a strategy for increasing the extent to which disabled
pupils can participate in the schools' curriculums; improving the physical environment of the
schools for the purpose of increasing the extent to which disabled pupils are able to take
advantage of education and benefits, facilities or services provided or offered by the schools
and improving the delivery to disabled pupils of information which is readily accessible to
pupils who are not disabled.

The specific proposals for 2016/17, where relevant, comply with the strategy.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
These have been outlined in the report.

The report sets out the present proposals for the 2016/17 financial year.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

No direct personnel implications.

CONSULTATIONS

The draft report was distributed as detailed below. All comments received have been reflected
in the report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are requested to note proposals to utilise the Education capital budget for 2016/17
as outlined in the report which will be reported to Cabinet, at its meeting on 30 March 2016.

Page 62



10. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1 To apprise Members of proposals for the Education capital budget for 2016/17.

1. STATUTORY POWER

11.1  The School Standards and Framework Act 1998.
The Learning and Skills Act 2000.
Equality Act 2010.

Author:
E-mail:
Consultees:

Bleddyn Hopkins, Assistant Director, Our Schools Our Future
hopkib@caerphilly.gov.uk

Chris Burns, Interim Chief Executive

Nicole Scammell, Acting Director of Corporate Services & S151 Officer
Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer

Councillor Rhianon Passmore, Cabinet Member, Education & Lifelong Learning
Councillor Wynne David, Chair of Education Scrutiny Committee
Councillor James Pritchard, Vice Chair of Education Scrutiny Committee
Gail Williams, Interim Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer
Angharad Price, Solicitor/Deputy Monitoring Officer

Lynne Donovan, Head of People Management and Development

Jane Southcombe, Financial Services Manager

Mark Williams, Manager, Building Consultancy Services

Andrew Young, Client Manager, Building Consultancy Services

David A Thomas, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities and Welsh Language)
Mike Lewis, Principal Accountant — Education Central

Sarah Mutch, Early Years Manager.

Background Papers: 17th Edition Electrical Works (Cabinet report 4 February 2015)

Capital bid pro-formas 2016/17
School Condition Surveys

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



4

Agenda ltem 11

N
CAERPHILLY

COIINTY BOROUIGH COENCIE
CYNGOR BWRIDEISTREF SIRDL

CAERFFILY

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
23RD FEBRUARY 2016

SUBJECT: KEY STAGE 4/ KEY STAGE 5§ PERFORMANCE 2015

REPORT BY: ED PRYCE, EDUCATION ACHIEVEMENT SERVICE (EAS)

1.1

2.1

41

4.2

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To inform members of Caerphilly schools’ 2015 key stage 4 and key stage 5 performance.

SUMMARY

This report presents members with the final published 2015 performance data for key stage 4
and 5.

LINKS TO STRATEGY

Education Achievement Services (EAS) Business Plan
Education Service Improvement Plan
Single Integrated Plan

Key Stage 4

At Key Stage 4, the following key performance measures are used to evaluate and compare
the full range of achievement within and across local authorities:

e Level 2 threshold including English or Welsh first language and mathematics (L2+)
e Level 2 threshold (L2)

e Level 1 threshold (L1)

e Core Subject Indicator (CSI)

e Capped Points Score (CPS)

e Level 2 qualification (equivalent to GCSE A*-C) in English or Welsh first language
o Level 2 qualification (equivalent to GCSE A*-C) in mathematics

e Level 2 qualification (equivalent to GCSE A*-C) in science

Of these, the Level 2 threshold including English/Welsh first language and mathematics and
the capped point score are particularly important and WG publishes local authority
benchmarks based on these each year.

Page 65



4.3 Final 2015 results indicate continued progress with increases in all high level indicators and
subjects. The proportion of pupils achieving the Level 2 threshold inclusive of English/Welsh
first language and mathematics has improved from 50% in 2014 to 52.6% in 2015.

KS4 L2 inc En/We & Ma (FSM Order: lowest to highest FSM%)
80
66.9

57.9
60 56.7 54.2 ——

47.7
40
20
0

4.4 There was also a small increases to the L1 threshold and a more significant increase to the L2
threshold, although L2 remains slightly below the national average. L1 is now above the
Wales average. The capped point score increased , but is still below the Wales average.

Level 2 incl. Capped Points Score
100 350
340
80 330
60 320
40 300
50 290
280
0 270
10 11 12 13 14 15 10 11 12 13 14 15
mmmm Caerphilly 45.243.345.146.3 50 52.6 . Caerphilly 297.301.811.818.326.340.7
——Wales  49.450.151.152.755.457.9 —Wales  305.811.823.333.B40.8435
Level 2 Level 1
100 100
98
" /_ 96
60 94
92
40 90
20 88
86
0 84
10 11 12 13 14 15 10 11 12 13 14 15
= Caerphilly 61.262.564.169.174.180.1 mmmm Caerphilly 89.690.091.592.4 93.6 96.7
——Wales  63.867.372.677.882.384.1 ——Wales  89.790.391.893.294.094.4

Page 66



4.5 There were increases in all subjects, and CSI, and all except Science remain below the

national average.

English (A*-C)

100

80
60 ————

40
20

. Caerphill

=]

58.157.656.055.760.662.2

—\Nales 62.762.862.262.966.268.6

Science (A*-C)

100
80
60
40
20

10 11 12 13 14 15
|| i
Caerphill ) 365.469.170.079.686.9

=—\Nales  63.665.970.674.882.384.0

Mathematics (A*-C)

100

80
60
4
10 11 12 13 14 15
mm Caerphilly 53.750.253.255.756.561.4
55.756.558.460.361.764.4

(=]

2

o o

—\Nales

Csl

100
80
60

—————
40

10 11 12 13 14 15
B Caerphilly 43.841.843.942.647.850.6
48.048.748.949.252.654.8

o o

—\\ales

Page 67



4.6 Gender Differences

The gender gap in Caerphilly has fluctuated over the past 5 years, and for the Level 2
threshold inclusive of English/Welsh first language and mathematics is now 8.8 percentage
points, a decrease from 12.6 percentage points in 2014, above the Wales average of 7.5
percentage points. Both boys and girls have improved performance in all areas since 2014,

with the exception of English L2 girls.

KS4 L2 inc E/W & M - % boys and girls achieving

100

90

80

70

60

.-_———._—__-.

,____—.-_

50

— ]

e

40
30
20

10

2010/11

2011/12

2012/13

e==@==BOys - Caerphilly == @= Boys - Wales

2013/14

__——."___—.

2014/15

Girls - Caerphilly == @= Girls - Wales

KS4 L2 incE/W & M (% achieving) | 2010/11 | 2011/12 | 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15
Boys - Caerphilly 41.3 41.0 44.1 43.8 48.2
Boys - Wales 46.4 46.9 48.7 51.4 54.3
Girls - Caerphilly 45.5 49.3 48.6 56.4 57.0
Girls - Wales 54.0 55.5 57.0 59.7 61.8
Difference (boys% - girls%) -Caerphilly -4.2 -8.3 -4.5 -12.6 -8.8
Difference (boys% - girls%) - Wales -7.6 -8.6 -8.3 -8.3 -7.5

Page 68




4.7 Performance of eéFSM / non-eFSM Pupils
The FSM/non FSM gap increased in 2015 for the Level 2 threshold inclusive of English/Welsh
first language and mathematics from a 28.9 points gap in 2013 to a 33.4 points gap in 2015,
above the Wales average of 32.5 points. This gap has increased due to the acceleration of
non FSM pupil performance relative to FSM pupil performance.

KS4 L2 inc E/W & M - % FSM/non FSM pupils
achieving

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30 - — =0

- w____ﬁ,.#_—r-—.

10

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

e==@== FSM - Caerphilly = &= FSM - Wales

non FSM - Caerphilly == @= non FSM - Wales

KS4 L2 incE/W & M (%

achieving) 2010/11 | 2011/12 | 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15
FSM - Caerphilly 18.5 22.6 24.1 26.5 25.9
FSM - Wales 22.0 23.4 25.8 27.8 31.6
non FSM - Caerphilly 50.1 51.9 53.0 56.3 59.3
non FSM - Wales 55.7 56.6 58.5 61.6 64.1
Difference (FSM% -non FSM%) -

Caerphilly -31.6 -29.3 -28.9 -29.8 -33.4
Difference (FSM% -non FSM%) -

Wales -33.7 -33.2 -32.7 -33.8 -32.5

Page 69



4.8

LA Rankings

Improvement is at a faster rate than the national average in the majority of indicators.

Caerphilly’s performance remained the same or improved in all levels.

L2
inclusiv
e

L2

L1

CSlI

Capped
Point
Score

English

Maths

Science

2015

19

20

7

18

16

20

17

7

2014

20

20

16

19

21

20

19

16

Page 70

2015 FSM% - Pupils age 5-15 L2 inc Eng/Wel & Mat Level 2 Threshold (o] Level 1 Threshold Capped Points Score
Powys 10.9 hshire 66.9 Neath Port Talbot 92.0 Vale of Glamorgan 63.9 Gwynedd 97.9 Gwynedd 362.0
Monmouthshire 11.4 Vale of Glamorgan 64.9 Monmouthshire 91.2 Monmouthshire 63.3 Powys 97.1 Ceredigion 358.9
Ceredigion 11.9 Swansea 64.0 Ceredigion 89.9 Gwynedd 62.4 Monmouthshire 97.0 Neath Port Talbot 358.7
Gwynedd 13.3 Powys 63.9 Vale of Glamorgan 89.4 Ceredigion 61.4 Ceredigion 96.8 Swansea 358.4
Vale of Glamorgan 13.5 Gwynedd 63.3 Swansea 88.9 Swansea 60.6 Merthyr Tydfil 96.8 Vale of Glamorgan 357.9
Flintshire 14.9 Ceredigion 62.7 Gwynedd 88.9 Powys 60.2 Swansea 96.7 Powys 356.2
Pembrokeshire 16.3 Carmarthenshire 61.1 Powys 88.7 Flintshire 58.7 Caerphilly 96.7 355.9
Wrexham 16.6 Flintshire 60.6 Rhondda Cynon Taff 87.1 Bridgend 58.6 Isle of Anglesey 96.3 Carmarthenshire 353.9
Conwy 17.1 Bridgend 59.7 Carmarthenshire 87.0 Carmarthenshire 58.2 Torfaen 96.0 Isle of Anglesey 3511
Carmarthenshire 17.2 Cardiff 59.3 Denbighshire 86.0 Cardiff 56.5 Neath Port Talbot 96.0 Rhondda Cynon Taff 345.6
Isle of Anglesey Neath Port Talbot 58.4 Merthyr Tydfil 85.4 54.8 Carmarthenshire 95.8 Denbighshire 345.4
Torfaen 57. Torfaen 54.5 Vale of Glamorgan 95.8 Merthyr Tydfil 343.8

Isle of Anglesey 56.9 Newport 83.7 Isle of Anglesey 54.4 Rhondda Cynon Taff 95.7 Bridgend 343.5
Denbighshire 19.0 Torfaen 56.7 Bridgend 83.7 Neath Port Talbot 54.3 Conwy 95.6 343.5
Swansea 19.8 Denbighshire 56.1 Conwy 83.6 Rhondda Cynon Taff 53.3 South East Wales 95.5 Pembrokeshire 343.2
Bridgend 20.0 South East Wales 55.1 Flintshire 83.2 Denbighshire 51.9 Pembrokeshire 95.4 Flintshire 342.1
Newport 20.4 Rhondda Cynon Taff 54.6 Isle of Anglesey 83.1 Pembrokeshire 51.9 Bridgend 95.2 Caerphilly 340.7
South East Wales 20.8 Newport 54.2 Torfaen 83.1 South East Wales 51.6 Denbif ire 94.9 Conwy 339.4
Cardiff 22.2 Pembrokeshire 54.2 Pembrokeshire 83.0 Conwy 50.8 Flintshire 94.5 South East Wales 339.3
Rhondda Cynon Taff[  22.5 Conwy 54.2 South East Wales 82.4 Caerphilly 50.6 94.4 Newport 338.9
Caerphilly 23.3 Caerphilly 52.6 Cardiff 81.6 Newport 49.6 Newport 94.3 Torfaen 338.6
Merthyr Tydfil 23.4 Wrexham 52.1 Caerphilly 80.1 Merthyr Tydfil 48.9 Wrexham 92.8 Cardiff 336.9
Neath Port Talbot 23.7 Merthyr Tydfil 51.9 Gwent 74.3 Wrexham 48.7 Cardiff 92.1 Wrexham 326.0
Blaenau Gwent 29.2 Blaenau Gwent 47.7 Wrexham 719 Blaenau Gwent 40.6 Blaenau Gwent 91.8 [ Gwent 317.7

English A*- C Mathematics A*- C Science A*- C

Vale of Glamorgan 76.7| [Monmouthshire 72.9| |Gwynedd 94.2

Monmouthshire 76.1| [Powys 70.5| |Isle of Anglesey 91.8

Powys 74.3| [Swansea 70.3| |Vale of Glamorgan 91.0

Ceredigion 73.9| |Vale of Glamorgan 70.0| |Torfaen 90.4

Swansea 72.6| [Flintshire 69.4| |Bridgend 89.5

Gwynedd 72.3| [Ceredigion 67.7| |Ceredigion 87.2

Flintshire 72.2| |Carmarthenshire 67.1| |Caerphilly 86.9

Carmarthenshire 72.1] |Gwynedd 66.9| [Rhondda,Cynon,Taf 86.7

Cardiff Bridgend 65.7| [Swansea 86.5

Bridgend Neath Port Talbot 64.9| |Monmouthshire 86.2

Isle of Anglesey 64.5| |Carmarthenshire 86.1

Neath Port Talbot 5 64.4| |Flintshire 85.8

Newport 67.7| |Torfaen 63.9| [Neath Port Talbot 85.1

Denbighshire 66.9| [Denbighshire 63.6| |Pembrokeshire 84.8

Pembrokeshire 66.1| |Cardiff 63.2| |South East Wales 84.7

Rhondda,Cynon,Taf 66.1| [Conwy 62.5| [Conwy

Conwy 65.8| |South East Wales 62.2

South East Wales 65.8| |Pembrokeshire 61.5| [Powys R

Torfaen 65.7| [Caerphilly 61.4| [Newport 83.0

Wrexham 64.8| [Rhondda,Cynon,Taf 60.4| |Merthyr Tydfil 81.8

Isle of Anglesey 63.8| [Newport 59.6/ |Denbighshire 81.5

Caerphilly 62.2| |Merthyr Tydfil 58.3| |Cardiff 80.7

Merthyr Tydfil 60.9| [Wrexham 57.1| |Wrexham 76.1

Blaenau Gwent 59.3| |Blaenau Gwent 54.8| |Blaenau Gwent 70.0



49 Individual Schools

Improvement across Caerphilly masks variation between schools and indicators. Performance
in Newbridge, Blackwood, Lewis Shool and St Cenydd improved in all indicators and subjects.
Performance in St Martin’s and Heolddu improved in all indicators and subjects other than L1
& L2 respectively, and Pontllanfraith & Rhymney in every indicator other than CSIl. Cwm
Rhymni performance declined in all areas apart from L1 and science. The table below
presents the individual schools’ data in order of Free School Meal eligibility (lowest to

highest).

% L2 E,W+M % L2 % L1 % CSI Capped Points
School 2013|2014(2015| 2013|2014| 2015|2013 2014| 2015(2013|2014|2015| 2013| 2014| 2015
Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni 61.5| 68.4 93.0{ 90.2 98.1{ 97.4 61.0| 67.5 374.8|370.1
Oakdale Comprehensive 51.9| 58.7 86.8| 86.2 93.8( 91.7 51.9| 58.7 338.2|319.0
Cwmcarn High School 54.6| 55.4 72.4( 71.2 95.7( 98.6 47.2]| 54.7 324.1|322.8
Newbridge School 50.3] 61.1 78.4( 90.0 95.3[ 96.7 50.3| 60.6 337.7|363.3
St Martin'S School 46.1] 50.3 58.9( 58.0 93.3[ 93.9 41.7] 42.5 309.8|309.0
Blackwood Comprehensive School | 45.7| 48.8 57.9] 68.2 91.9| 96.5 45.2| 48.3 310.2(332.5
Lewis Girls' Comprehensive School | 53.2| 49.0 71.7| 81.0 93.1] 96.1 51.4| 49.0 340.4(350.2
Bedwas High School 29.9| 44.1 52.4( 69.5 85.7| 81.4 27.9| 38.1 279.0|296.5
Lewis School Pengam 49.5] 49.0 81.9| 88.7 90.7( 93.4 48.4] 47.7 329.2|332.8
St Cenydd School 39.0| 37.9 60.5( 71.1 91.8( 93.2 33.8| 34.7 309.1|319.4
Heolddu Comprehensive School 31.5| 35.9 60.5| 66.9 90.3| 95.1 31.5| 35.9 297.4(313.8
Risca Community Comprehensive | 43.9] 45.1 72.8| 80.5 97.4| 97.6 42.1] 35.4 329.9]339.0
Pontllanfraith Comprehensive 39.2| 47.1 50.4| 53.8 85.6| 80.8 26.4| 47.1 272.5|270.9
Rhymney Comprehensive School, | 43.7| 41.5 66.5| 59.1 93.7| 95.0 27.8| 37.7 295.2(301.1
Caerphilly 46.3] 50.0 69.1( 74.1 92.4( 93.6 42.6] 47.8 318.5|326.3
Wales 52.7| 55.4 77.8| 82.3 93.2( 94.0 49.2] 52.6 333.1|340.8

English (A*-C) Maths (A*-C) % L2 Science
School 2013|2014(2015|2013|2014|2015| 2013| 2014| 2015
Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni 72.8| 75.2 68.1| 73.5 92.5| 94.4
Oakdale Comprehensive 58.9| 62.4 62.8| 72.5 86.8| 91.7
Cwmcarn High School 72.4| 66.9 58.3] 61.9 82.8| 95.7
Newbridge School 63.2| 65.0 60.2| 67.2 87.1| 88.9
St Martin'S School 51.1| 59.1 62.8| 57.5 50.0| 74.0
Blackwood Comprehensive School | 56.3| 65.2 52.8| 53.2 55.3| 79.1
Lewis Girls' Comprehensive School | 63.6| 71.9 57.2| 49.7 71.1| 90.2
Bedwas High School 37.4| 55.9 41.5| 51.7 53.1| 56.8
Lewis School Pengam 54.9| 57.6 54.4| 55.6 86.3| 86.1
St Cenydd School 43.6| 50.5 53.8| 45.3 51.3| 48.4
Heolddu Comprehensive School 36.3| 52.1 45.2] 39.4 91.9| 96.5
Risca Community Comprehensive | 59.6| 54.9 48.2] 57.3 86.8| 75.6
Pontllanfraith Comprehensive 46.4| 51.9 54.4| 53.8 27.2| 73.1
Rhymney Comprehensive School, | 56.3| 50.3 54.4| 50.3 62.0| 65.4
Caerphilly 55.7| 60.6 55.7| 56.5 70.0| 79.6
Wales 62.9| 66.2 60.3| 61.7 74.8| 82.3

Page 71



410

Free School Meal Benchmark Summary

When FSM benchmark data is used to compare the performance of similar schools, the
number of Caerphilly schools above the median has increased for the Level 1, capped points
score, mathematics and science measures. It has reduced for the Level 2 incl threshold, Level
2, CSl and English. There is only one Welsh medium secondary school, and performance has
been below the median for the past 3 years. The number of schools in the bottom quarter has
increased for L2 inc, English and Welsh.

Level 2 incE/W & M Level 2 Level 1 csl Capped Points Score

100% e p— 100% 100% 100% - 100%
75% 75% 75% 75% 75%
50% 50%

50% 50%

25% - 25% 25% 25% - 25%

2012/13  2013/14  2014/15 2012/13  2013/14  2014/15 2012/13  2013/14  2014/15 2012/13  2013/14  2014/15 2012/13  2013/14  2014/15

W Quartile 1 ™ Quartile 2 W Quartile 1 ™ Quartile 2 W Quartile 1 ™ Quartile 2 W Quartile 1 ™ Quartile 2 W Quartile 1 ™ Quartile 2

Quartile 3 @ Nuartile 4 Quartile 3 B Quartile 4 Quartile 3 @ Quartile 4 Quartile 3 @ Nuartile 4 Quartile 3 B Quartile 4

English Welsh Mathematics Science

100% 100% 100% - 100%
-

75% 75% 75% 75%

50%

50% 50%

25% 25%

2012/13  2013/14  2014/15 2012/13  2013/14  2014/15 2012/13  2013/14  2014/15 2012/13  2013/14  2014/15

W Quartile 1 ™ Quartile 2 W Quartile 1 W Quartile 2 B Quartile 1 W Quartile 2 W Quartile 1 ™ Quartile 2

Quartile 3 ® Quartile 4 Quartile 3 B Quartile 4 Quartile 3 m Quartile 4 Quartile 3 m Quartile 4

Individual school benchmark performance is presented in Appendix A.

411 Welsh Government Modelled Expectation
The gap between the LA benchmarks for performance modelled on FSM entitlement and
actual performance increased in 2015, with the Level 2 threshold including English/Welsh and
mathematics 0.4 percentage points below the expected achievement, despite attainment
exceeding expected benchmarks for the previous 4 years. For capped point score Caerphilly
narrowed the gap to 3.8 percentage points below the expected achievement.
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Level 2 threshold | Actual 44 45 46 50.2 52.8
including
English/\Welsh Target 43 44 46 495 53.2
and maths Difference 1 1 0 0.7 -0.4
Capped Average Actual 304 313 320 327.7 341.9
Wider Point Target 304 316 329 340.7 345.7
Score Difference | 0 -3 -9 -13 3.8
5. LA — Key Stage 5
51 Performance Data — A Level Only

Please note that all data for 2015 is ‘1*! Provisional’ at this stage and yet to be verified by
schools, through the Welsh Government’s checking process. Any successful remarking of
papers which affects grades, is not included in 2015 data, but is included in 2014 data.

Page 72



The analysis below uses calculated figures, which are not all shown in the tables.

A Level (A2) | |

Total number

of A Level (A2) [Percentage of A Levels (A2) Percentage of A Levels (A2) at

Entries qualifications achieved (A*-E)  |Grade A/A*

2014| 2015| 2014| 2015|Difference 2014| 2015|Difference

Caerphilly 1025 962 99.5 96.5 -3.0+ 16.5| 20.7 4.2 ]
South East Wales| 4102| 4424 99.5 96.4 -3.1[+% 20.1| 20.9 0.8
Wales 35492| 36034 98.0 97.3 -0.7|% 24.0| 23.1 -0.9|+

Cohort size 2014 = 548, Cohort size 2015 = 579 (From Level 3 Threshold Table Below)

A*-E

The percentage of A levels at A*-E has fallen from 99.5% to 96.5%.
The pupils of Caerphilly achieved 928 A-Levels at A*-E in 2015, 92 less than in 2014.

The cohort has increased slightly, and the number of A levels at A*-E awarded per student
decreased from 1.8 in 2014 to 1.6 in 2015.

The percentage of A levels at A*-A increased from 16.5% in 2014 to 20.7% in 2015.
The pupils of Torfaen achieved 120 A-Levels at A*-A in 2015, 30 more than in 2014.

The number of A levels at A*-A awarded per student increased from 0.09 in 2014 to 0.12 in
2015.

52 In 2014 there was only 5 A-Level entries which were graded as fail, but in 2015 this increased
to 34. This may suggest that some schools entered a small number of pupils for one or more
A Levels, where an alternative vocational qualification, may have been more appropriate.
5.3 Performance Data — Level 3 Threshold (includes A Level / Vocational Qualifications)
Level 3 Threshold
Total number |Percentage of students entering |Percentage of students achieving
2014| 2015| 2014| 2015|Difference 2014| 2015|Difference
Caerphilly 548 579 91.6 94.6 3.0|a 97.0( 96.7 -0.3(%
South East Wales 2233| 2198 90.0f 93.6 3.6|a 96.1| 96.6 0.5
Wales 13102 87.4 e 97.0 e
¢ \When vocational qualifications are taken into account and the Welsh Government’s main
indicator of post-16 performance, the Level 3 threshold, is considered performance decreased
slightly from 97.0% to 96.7%.
e This 0.3 percentage point decrease is at odds with the 0.5 percentage point increase across
the EAS region. Currently national improvement figures are not available to 1 decimal place,
SO No comparison can be made.
6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
6.1 There are no specific financial implications.

Page 73



7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

71 There are no specific personnel implications

8. EQUALITIES

8.1 There is no specific equalities impact in relation to the content of this report. When
performance information is discussed with schools as part of the monitoring, challenge,
support and intervention programme, equalities issues, such as gender and ethnicity are
taken into account. Similarly the Local Authority self-evaluation considers all equalities issues.

9. CONSULTATIONS

9.1 All comments have been reflected in the report.

10. RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1  Members are asked to note the contents of the report.

1. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

11.1  These plans link to the local authority’s duty to monitor and improve standards of education.

12. STATUTORY POWER

12.1  Schools Standards and Organisation (Wales) 2013

12.2 Schools Causing Concern Guidance 2013

Author: Ed Pryce, Education Achievement Service

Consultees :- Chris Burns, Interim Chief Executive

Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer

Bleddyn Hopkins, Assistant Director, 21%' Century Schools

Councillor R Passmore, Cabinet Member, Education and Leisure
Councillor W. David, Chair, Education for Life Scrutiny Committee
Councillor J. Pritchard, Vice Chair, Education for Life Scrutiny Committee
David Thomas, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities and Welsh Language)
Principal Challenge Adviser, Education Achievement Service

Appendix A — Key Stage 4, School Benchmark Quarter Performance

Page 74



Appendix A — Key Stage 4, School Benchmark Quarter Performance

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15
- School Name - :/" Ffup_ils - Quarter ~ _% I'-Tup_ils Quarter ~ _%EUP_HS Quarter -
Bedwas 299 ﬁ- 441 3 35.0 ]
Blackwood 457 2 48.8 2 59.8
Cwmcarn 546 2 55.4 2 55.9
Heolddu 31.5 3 35.9 3 48.9 3
Lewis Girls' 53.2 49.0 2 54.3
Lewis School 49.5 49.0 2 57.8
Level 2 threshold including Newbridge School 50.3
English/Welsh and Maths Oakdale 51.9
Pontllanfraith 39.2
Rhymney 43.7
Risca 43.9
St Cenydd School 39.0
St Martin'S School 46.1
'Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni 61.5
Bedwas 52.4
Blackwood 57.9
Cwmcarn 72.4
Heolddu 60.5
Lewis Girls' 7
Lewis School 81.9
Newbridge School 78.4
Level 2 threshold
Oakdale 86.8
Pontllanfraith 50.4
Rhymney 66.5
Risca 72.8
St Cenydd School 60.5
St Martin'S School 58.9
Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni 93.0
Bedwas 85.7
Blackwood 91.9 3 96.5 2 98.9 2
Cwmcarn 95.7 3 98.6 2 99.1 2
Heolddu 90.3 3 95.1 2 96.8 3
Lewis Girls' 93.1 3 96.1 2 97.7 2
Lewis School 90.7
Newbridge School 95.3
Lewel 1 threshold
Oakdale 93.8
Pontllanfraith 85.6
Rhymney 93.7
Risca 97.4
St Cenydd School 91.8
St Martin'S School 93.3
'Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni 98.1
Bedwas 279
Blackwood 45.2
Cwmcarn 47.2
Heolddu 31.5
Lewis Girls' 51.4
Lewis School 48.4
Newbridge School 50.3
Core Subject Indicator
Oakdale 51.9
Pontllanfraith 26.4
Rhymney 27.8
Risca 42.1
St Cenydd School 33.8
St Martin'S School 4.7
'Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni 61.0
Bedwas 279.0
Blackwood 310.2
Cwmcarn 324.1
Heolddu 297.4
Lewis Girls' 340.4
Lewis School 329.2
Newbridge School 337.7
Capped Points Score
Oakdale 338.2
Pontllanfraith 2725
Rhymney 295.2
Risca 329.9
St Cenydd School 309.1
St Martin'S School 309.8
Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni 374.8




Bedwas 37.4
Blackwood 56.3
Cwmcarn 72.4
Heolddu 36.3
Lewis Girls' 63.6
Lewis School 54.9
Newbridge School 63.2
English
Oakdale 58.9
Pontllanfraith 46.4
Rhymney 56.3
Risca 59.6
St Cenydd School 43.6
St Martin'S School 51.1
'Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni 72.8
Welsh as 1st Language 'Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni 67.5
Bedwas 415
Blackwood 52.8
Cwmcarn 58.3
Heolddu 452
Lewis Girls' 57.2
Lewis School 54.4
Newbridge School 60.2
Mathematics
Oakdale 62.8
Pontllanfraith 54.4
Rhymney 54.4
Risca 48.2
St Cenydd School 53.8
St Martin'S School 62.8
'Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni 68.1
Bedwas 53.1
Blackwood 55.3
Cwmcarn 82.8
Heolddu 91.9
Lewis Girls' 71 3 2
Lewis School 86.3 2 2
Newbridge School 87.1 2 88.9 3 92.3 2
Science
Oakdale 86.8 2 91.7 2 93.4 2
Pontllanfraith 27.2 3
Rhymney 62.0 2
Risca 86.8
St Cenydd School 51.3
St Martin's School 50.0
Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni 92.5

Page 76




4

Agenda ltem 12

N
CAERPHILLY

COIINTY BOROUIGH COENCIE
CYNGOR BWRIDEISTREF SIRDL

CAERFFILY

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
23RD FEBRUARY 2016

SUBJECT: FLYING START PROGRAMME IMPACT REPORT

REPORT BY: KERI COLE, CHIEF EDUCATION OFFICER

1.1

21

2.2

2.3

2.4

25

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To inform members of the initial impact of the Flying Start programme linked to one of the
Local Authority’s Outcome Agreements 2013-16.

SUMMARY

The Flying Start programme has been developed and expanded since 2008 in Caerphilly
county borough and now reaches annually 2533 children aged 0-3 years old and their families
in the most disadvantaged areas.

The statistical data for Caerphilly Flying Start is beginning to demonstrate the outcomes from
the investment in the programme. There are improving numbers of families accessing
parenting programmes, and bespoke individual support packages, childcare take up is
increasing and improving consistent attendance continues to be a focus. There continues to
be a low baseline on entry to childcare at 2years but the developmental interventions show
significant impact to put us consistently in the top 5 for children achieving or within one band
of their developmental milestones on leaving childcare at 3years.

Financial year 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17
Indicative funding £4,073,334 £4,782,367 £5,214,300 £5,214,300
Cap number of 1908 2246 2483 2483
children aged 0-3yrs

The Outcome Agreement 2013-16 has been successful in achieving the outcome targets and
drawing down additional funding for the Local Authority.

Within Caerphilly there is a strong connection between the three anti poverty programmes
preventing duplication of resources and maximising impact/outcomes for families.

Initial Foundation Phase profile trend data for the first cohort who accessed the full Flying
Start programme in the original ten areas will not be available until summer 2016.

Page 77



2.6

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

41

411

41.4

4.2

4.3

4.4

There has been significant investment in up skilling staff, regarding ensuring settings become
more inclusive and able to support children with additional needs, improve safeguarding
processes and audit, as well as improving performance management across all providers to
ensure data is robust and evidences the impact of their service for children and families.

LINKS TO STRATEGY

Flying Start strategic programme guidance April 2012 and subsequent appendices 2012-15.
Caerphilly Anti-Poverty Strategy

Caerphilly Single Integrated Plan

Caerphilly Welsh in Education Strategic Plan

Caerphilly Childcare Sufficiency Assessment and Action Plan

THE REPORT

The Flying Start programme has expanded from the initial 10 catchment areas to 26 Lower
Super Output Areas (LSOA) based on the most disadvantaged areas in Caerphilly and
targeted using the highest concentration of children aged 0-3 years living in income benefit
households [Appendix 1]. The Flying Start programme delivers:

Enhanced Health programme supporting families from antenatal stage until their child turns 4
years old, although they are not transitioned off the caseload until the September they attend
reception.

Parenting Programmes and individual Family Support — antenatal, postnatal and perinatal
mental health support.

Speech, Language and Communication interventions including Super Shellby, Pop in and
Play groups, and Speech therapist support.

Funded Childcare place for 2-3 year olds before they take up their Nursery place, including
early identification and support for children with additional needs. A list of non-maintained and
maintained childcare settings is attached in Appendix 3.

Caerphilly delivered the full Flying Start programme with all 4 components in the initial ten
Flying Start areas in 2008-09. Therefore those children completing the Foundation Phase in
the summer of 2016 will be the first cohort of Flying Start children who had access to the full
programme prior to Nursery. The Programme has expanded the areas from 10 areas — 26
LSOAs during 2012-16.

The programme aims to establish positive behaviours in children and families, through healthy
lifestyles, positive parenting, attendance and aspirations. Analysis of the school attendance
data in the first ten Flying Start areas shows that the average attendance for each school
follows an improving trend. The upwards trend could be a combination of activities focusing
on attendance in school as well as some contribution of the Flying Start programme to
develop the positive consistent behaviours at an earlier stage. Anecdotal reporting from
schools showed that parents were more willing to communicate with the school if children
were ill or away for any reason and were more aware of the importance of their child attending
school regularly.

Recent research ‘Improving Attendance and School’, Charlie Taylor 2012 explained the link

between children from disadvantaged backgrounds, attendance and school attainment of the
Level 2+ indicator at GCSE.

Page 78



4.4.1

442

443

4.4.4

445

446

447

4.5

4.6

47

4.8

Of pupils who miss more than 50% of school only 3% achieve 5A*-C as opposed to 73%
achieving 5A*-C who have 95% attendance.

Children with low attendance in Early Years are more likely to come from poorer backgrounds
and are likely to start school already behind their peers especially in language acquisition and
social development.

Poor attendance is often a sign there are more serious issues going on in the child’s life.

Without the opportunity to receive good quality learning every day from the start of their
Education the most disadvantaged pupils are unlikely to narrow the gap.

The Free School Meal gap widens at every key stage. The Wales trend data 2015 shows
approx, 30% FSM pupils achieved L2+ at GCSE, compared with 65% non-FSM pupils
achieved L2+ at GCSE.

Many entry level jobs, apprenticeships, A level courses and other training require 5 A*-C
GCSE including Maths and English (L2+ indicator).

Therefore the Flying Start programme is critical in establishing positive parent and child
behaviours, in readiness for the child’s education, in order to give them the best opportunity
for later life chances.

The 2013-16 Outcome Agreement for Education, Improving Early Years Experiences is
summarised in Appendix 2. The Flying Start programme has managed to successfully meet
the required targets in each year. The summary figures include only partial figures for 2015-16
missing the final term of interventions. However, the summary demonstrates the improving
trends in data. The numbers of children accessing childcare provision, and the numbers of
parents accessing and completing parenting programmes has increased over the three year
period. The identification of children with speech language and communication difficulties has
improved which enables more effective targeting of Super Shellby interventions.

Over a period of 2 years there has been significant implementation for early identification and
support for children with Additional Learning Needs in childcare settings. The training has
supported a change in culture across the childcare sector and has up skilled 347 staff in 2014-
15. During the academic year 2014-15 there were 85 children observed as needing Play plans
and put on the SEN register which equated to 17% of the children accessing Flying Start
placements. Of those 85 children identified 73% went on to their Foundation Phase Nursery
place without needing support. The Supported Places scheme (funded through Families First)
has been developed for those children identified as needing additional support in childcare
settings prior to starting Nursery who live in non-Flying Start areas. This scheme has also
been very successful in supporting 63% of the children to access mainstream provision
without needing any support and 37% were referred for toileting support only. The case study
and parental comments in Appendix 5 capture some of the individual successes.

In the Welsh Government Flying Start statistical release 2014-15 Caerphilly Flying Start is
benchmarked against other Local Authorities. 88% children took up a childcare offer, although
100% children were offered childcare placements. 85% of children were fully immunised by
47months which was a significant increase on 2013-14 (78% fully immunised). Only 58% of
children entering childcare are reaching or within one band of their developmental milestones
which is the lowest across Wales. Whereas 89% of children leaving childcare to move on to
Nursery are reaching or within one band of their developmental milestones making Caerphilly
4" in Wales. The improvement in number of parents offered and accessing parenting
programmes from 181 in 2013-14 to 228 in 2014-15 put Caerphilly 4™ in Wales.

Flying Start outreach works with Children Services Leaving Care and Looked After Children
teams to identify those at risk of teenage pregnancies, to deliver sexual health (preventing
pregnancy) and packages of antenatal support through to the rest of the Flying Start
programme for the most vulnerable young people and their children. This has been successful

Page 79



4.9

410

4.1

412

4.13

5.1

5.2

in preventing babies being taken into care and in most cases reduced the need for babies to
be placed on the Child Protection Register also. The support builds resilience in the young
people and develops their understanding of the care needs of their child as well as the
support available.

During 2015 Flying Start worked with Communities First and Families First to develop
Pathways for Provision under specific themes [Appendix 6]. The pathways show how the
three programmes interact to ensure that families have access to services and also show that
most duplication between the programmes has been eliminated through close partnership
working.

During the implementation of the programme there has been a requirement for significant
capital works. During 2014-16 projects in Wave 3 Flying Start areas were implemented,
including a Welsh medium Integrated Children Centre on the old YGG Caerffili school site,
and a contribution to begin the new Primary School and ICC in Rhymney. In 2016-17 we have
been asked to submit small bids for minor capital works to ensure longevity of previous
schemes.

One of the indirect benefits of the Flying Start programme is the number of parents able to
access volunteering opportunities in one of the childcare settings or contracted delivery team
partners’ organisations. Many volunteering placements have led to work placement
opportunities while completing funded qualifications and some have led to subsequent
employment. This is now being tracked as an incidental benefit to the programme delivery.

Welsh Government has recently started working with Local Authority Flying Start programme
managers and Education performance data analysts to identify the potential for longitudinal
tracking using the PLASC database returns from schools. They are working to develop an
Early Years PLASC as well as the relevant information sharing protocols to share individual
data for long term tracking of outcomes for cohorts. Although in its infancy this is taking
significant importance in Welsh Government and Flying Start teams to ensure the programme
benefits can be proven over time. Flying Start team and Education business support team
continue to work together to develop shared databases for longitudinal tracking of children
and families.

There is a recent publication for the Flying Start programme published by Welsh Government
on Monday 18" January 2016. This is the first report from a three-year qualitative research
project with Flying Start parents. The aim of the research is explore experiences and
perceived impacts for families throughout their engagement with the programme. Drawing on
the first year of fieldwork, this report describes parents’ views on their engagement,
experiences and perceived impacts of the programme so far.

Qualitative research with Flying Start families: Wave 1 report
Qualitative research with Flying Start families Wave 1 report: Executive Summary

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

All contracts have included requirements for Equalities and Welsh Language in order to meet
the relevant legislation and this is checked within the selection process as standard practice.
As such we are impact assessing the settings during award and selection stages of tender
processes, to ensure compliance.

A range of childcare placements have been sourced meeting the requirement for within 15
minute walking distance for families. Welsh medium childcare placements, Childminder and
Day Nursery placements are available according to parental needs and to support any
working families. Contracted settings have sufficient places to meet the current demands but
this is continuously kept under review.

Page 80



53

5.4

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

1.

Children with additional needs are supported to access their full entitlement in the provision of
the parents’ choice that will best meet their child’s needs, including a bursary system for non-
maintained settings to provide additional support as needed.

Demand for Welsh medium provision continues to be assessed from birth / antenatally / at
registration into the programme. Families are asked their preference for Welsh / English
communications in line with the Welsh Language Standards Act as well as their preference for
language of provision they wish to access in line with the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The new framework for commissioning of childcare placements in the non-maintained
childcare settings has been implemented from September 2015.

Funding for the Flying Start programme has been maintained for 2016-17 at a standstill
budget of £5.2million.

During 2015-16 the Basic Skills Language and Play grant of £74,000 was moved into the
Flying Start grant offer letter but was monitored separately. This grant has been removed in
2016-17 from the Flying Start grant offer.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Due to the discontinuation of the Basic Skills Language and Play grant, the LAP staff have
been put on redundancy notice, due to finish end of March 2016.

Current steady state Flying Start programme delivery is expected to continue with all existing
Flying Start contracts renewed until March 31 2017.

There are no HR implications for the core Flying Start programme delivery 2016-17.

CONSULTATIONS

All comments are included within the body of this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members note the contents of this report, the completion of the Outcome Agreement 2013-16
and the plan to bid for capital maintenance funding for 2016-17.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

To ensure members give due consideration to the impact of the programme to date.
STATUTORY POWER

Children and Families Measure (Wales) 2010

Childcare Act 2006

Education Act 1996
School Standards Act 1998

Page 81



Author: Sarah Mutch, Early Years Manager
Tel: 01443 864093
Email: mutchs@caerphilly.gov.uk
Consultees: Chris Burns, Interim Chief Executive
Councillor Wyn David, Chair Education Scrutiny Committee
Councillor Jamie Pritchard, Vice Chair Education Scrutiny Committee
Councillor Rhiannon Passmore, Cabinet Member for Education
Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer
Education Senior Management Team
Lisa Haile, Personnel Manager
David Thomas, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities and Welsh Language)
Mike Lewis, Principal Accountant — Education Central

Appendices:

Appendix 1 Flying Start list of areas and caseload count

Appendix 2  Summary of Outcome Agreement targets 2013-16

Appendix 3  Flying Start Childcare settings — maintained and non-maintained
Appendix 4  Impact profile Flying Start programme

Appendix 5  Support for Children with Additional Learning Needs

Appendix 6  Pathways for provision (Flying Start, Communities First and Families First)

Page 82



Appendix 1 — Flying Start areas and caseload count Nov 2015

Flying Start Area Updated number 0- Challc(:ici:;zg Il:;isuﬁgzlrrztf’ /
3s on caseload .
children
Wave 1 -2008/09
Upper Rhymney 164 40
Lower Rhymney inc in above 48
Abertysswg 80 24
Fochriw 53 24
Phillipstown 64 32
Park 149 48
Hengoed 197 48
Graig-y-Rhacca 128 48
St James 230 80
Pantside 80 32
Sub-total 1145
Wave 2 —2013/14
BTM 2 - Tyn y wern Trethomas 85 40
Aber Valley 4 - Abertridwr Sengennydd 61 12
Argoed 1 - Markham 86 20
Crumlin 3 - Trinant 87 20
Cefn Forest 2 - Cefn Forest 33 16
Pengam 1 - Fairview 94 24
Risca East 2 - Ty Sign 182 40
Penyrheol 8 - Penyrheol 109 30
Penyrheol 4 - Trecennydd 88 24
Sub-total 825
Increased cap number 2015-16 of 2483
Wave 3 - 2015/16
St Cattwg 1 - Gelligaer 149
St Cattwg 5 - Gelligaer inc in above 40
Pontllanfraith 5 - Bryn Primary 100 32
Aber Valley 3 - Sengennydd 128 32
Blackwood 2 - Blackwood Primary 88 24
Morgan Jones 2 - Churchill Park 98 24
Pontllanfraith 2 - Penllwyn Incin Pont5 Incin Pont5
Sub-total 563
Total 2533 842

Page 83




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84



Appendix 2 - Summary of Outcome Agreement targets 2013-16

201314 2014-15 2015-16
[Apr-Dec

2015]
Number of children accessing the programme 2121 2212 2461
Number of children accessing childcare 434 489 647
Number of children accessing Welsh medium 63 63 78
childcare
Number of children supported for SLC through 145 88 Annual
Super Shellby
Number of children who are fully immunised by 304 363 Annual
47 months
Number of health visitor face-to-face contacts 8426 16640 14,275
Number of families accessing parenting 75 120 145
programmes
Number of families receiving packages of 52 21 141
enhanced support
Percentage children accessing childcare 89 88 98%
places
Percentage of children attending 75% or more 70 70 Annual
childcare sessions
Percentage families completing 75% of a 59 76 76%
parenting programme
Percentage of families completing the 91 85 85%
parenting programme with improved TOPSE
results
Percentage families completing enhanced 100 100 84%
packages of support reporting their needs had
been addressed
Percentage of Flying Start children reaching or 60 58 56%

exceeding their developmental milestones on
entry into the Foundation Phase measured
through the 3year SOGS assessment

Page 85




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86



Appendix 3 — Flying Start Childcare settings — maintained and non-maintained

Flying Start Area

Setting / settings serving the area

Risca/Pantside/Trinant

Cylch Meithrin Dewi Sant

Abertridwr/Sengenydd/GYR/Churchill
Park/Penyrheol/St.James/Trecenydd/Trethomas

Cylch Meithrin Ifor Bach

Gelligaer/Penybryn/Hengoed

Cylch Meithrin Nelson

Cefn Fforest/Fairview/Trinant/Penllwyn/The
Bryn/Blackwood

Cylch Meithrin Pontllanfraith

Abertysswg/U.Rhymney/L.Rhymney/Fochriw/
Phillipstown/Markham

Cylch Meithrin Rhymni

Bargoed/Hengoed/Markham

Cylch Meithrin Tedi Twt

Hengoed Cylch Meithrin Yr Enfys

All Areas Julie Rees Childminding

Abertysswg Moriah 1 Rosy Days (Abertysswg) CCBC setting

Bargoed (Park) Bargoed 4 New Beginnings (Heolddu) CCBC setting

Fochriw Darren Valley 2 Gemstones (Fochriw) CCBC setting

GYR BTM 6 Liwybrau Llon (Graig-y-Rhacca) CCBC setting
Little Acorns / Incy Wincys (Hengoed) CCBC

Hengoed Hengoed 2 setting

Lower Rhymney Moriah 2 & 3 Twinkle Tots (Bryn Awel) CCBC setting

Pantside Newbridge 2 Ffrindiau Fach (Pantside) CCBC setting

Phillipstown New Tredegar 3 Seren Fach (Phillipstown) CCBC setting

St.James St James 3 & 4 Young Explorers (St.James) CCBC setting

Upper Rhymney Twyn Carno 1 Amazing Angels (Ty Coch) CCBC setting

Abertridwr/Senghenydd | Aber Valley 4

Nant Y Parc CCBC setting / Ysgol Feithrin
Abertridwr

Cefn Fforest Cefn Fforest 2 Cefn FForest CCBC setting
Fairview Pengam 2(Fairview) | Fairview CCBC setting
Markham Argoed 1 Markham Village Playgroup
Penyrheol Penyrheol 8 Penyrheol CCBC setting
Moriah Preschool Playgroup / Risca CCBC
Risca / Ty Sign Risca East 2 setting
Trecenydd Penyrheol 4 Trecenydd CCBC setting
Trethomas BTM 2 Tiddlers Wrap Around / Bedwas Day nursery
Trinant Crumlin 3 Trinant CCBC setting
Blackwood Blackwood 2 Blackwood CCBC setting
Churchill Park Morgan Jones 2 Plasyfelin Puddleducks
Gelligaer St Cattwg 1 Greenhill Primary CCBC setting
Penllwyn Pontllanfraith 2 Penllwyn CCBC setting
Penybryn St Cattwg 5 Greenhill Primary CCBC setting
Senghenydd Aber Valley 3 Nant Y Parc CCBC setting

Page 87




The Bryn Pontllanfraith 5 Penllwyn CCBC setting

Page 88



Appendix 4 — Impact profile Flying Start programme

The story so far:

Significant investment in building the infrastructure for delivery of the programme in 26 of
the most disadvantaged areas — both capital building works and staff team development
Expansion from 10 areas in 2008 to 25 areas in 2015 based on income benefit data for
LSOAs

Expanded reach of programme to 1150 per year to 2483 per year (increasing
continuously with movements in and new births as 4 year olds exit programme and are
no longer counted in the caseload number). In the statistical release 2014-15 Caerphilly
has 25% of the children aged under 4 on the Flying Start Health Visitor caseloads as a
percentage of all resident children aged under 4 in the borough.

Raised skill and qualification level in childcare and parenting teams recognising
professionals

Developed evidence based provision for the 4 core elements with the appropriate
evaluation tools, for delivery across all Flying Start areas

Community focus has enabled excellent take up of provision and value in each
community

Economic mix of provision has enabled sustainable provision in all local Flying Start
communities e.g. non-maintained childcare settings (there are Welsh and English
medium settings, childminder and Day Nurseries), community centres, and local
volunteers

Partnership working outside of the Flying Start programme has maximised the impact of
the funding and prevented duplication e.g. collaboration with Communities First and
Families First as well as with statutory services to provide a seamless approach for
families

Health - Parenting and Family Support —

Baby Club, Chatterbox, HENRY, Home Safety, Parent Nurturing Programme, Family Lives,
Antenatal, Breastfeeding support, Bespoke package in PAFT, OCNSs, Solihull (various parenting

the home, SOGS (Schedule of Growing Skills packages from antenatal to older child, group or
assessment) individual), Home Inventory assessments

Early Language Development — Childcare —

Baby LAP, Pop in and Play, Welcomm screening, PAFT | funded part time, high quality environments, staff,
(Parents As First Teachers), Chatterbox, Super Shellby, | and resources, focus on child development,
Speech and Language Therapist inclusive, smooth transition for family to school

Headline impact figures

Informed of all breastfeeding mothers in Flying Start areas on discharge, which is
improving breastfeeding rates for Flying Start families.

The average attendance for Flying Start Childcare in the existing areas is 77%, a 6%
increase on last year’s results. The attendance in the expansion areas is 80%.

According to the Analysis and Interpretation of Data for the Flying Start Programme
2011-13 conducted by GL Assessments summarizes that in terms of national indicators,
the Caerphilly Flying Start programme is showing a good performance (particularly in Self-
care Social skills) with 59% of children meeting or exceeding their developmental

Page 89




milestones in all 7 skill areas at 3 years. This compares positively with the Flying Start
average of 52% and falls just below the Tackling Poverty target of 60%.

100% children eligible for childcare are offered a full Flying Start Childcare offer. 88% of
offers are taken up by families.

Caerphilly has the lowest baseline for children on entry to childcare, however, children
make significant progress during their time in childcare (562% reaching or within one band
of their developmental milestones). In the same year the 89% of 3 year olds leaving
childcare achieved or were within one band of their developmental milestones.

228 places were offered on formal structured parenting programmes in 2014-15 which
was increased from 181 places offered in 2013-14. 164 families enrolled on parenting
programmes in 2014-15 which was an increase from the 125 families (140 parents)
enrolled on the 20 PNP courses in 2013-14. The overall percentage of parent taking up
and completing parenting programmes has increased this year again, which we see as
great achievement, although this is an ongoing target area.

91% of Flying Start families completing the parenting programmes showed improved
TOPSE results (positive distance travelled).

During 2013-14, 90% of Flying Start families accessing Pop in and Play programme for
Early Language Development demonstrated an improved score across all areas of the
Outcome Star.

Reduction in the need for Education Psychology involvement on transition to school
since the ALN Advisor came into post.

Page 90



Appendix 5 — Support for children with Additional Learning Needs (ALN)

Over the course of 2014-15 there has continued to be significant training across the
Early Years Childcare sector with 21 sessions delivered to 347 staff. This has increased
and improved earlier identification of children needing support, as well as improved
referrals and observations for earlier interventions to reduce the need for statutory
assessment when the children transition to school nursery. This has meant that currently
only preschool children with complex ALN are referred to the Education Psychology
team.

There has been a visible change in culture with settings being more inclusive and
regarding a step-down in support required as a success for the child and their setting.
Settings are using Play Plans and SEN registers to support the children in their setting.
The case study shows how a setting successfully implemented the targets supporting
the child’s development and their close links with the school for transition meant this chid
did not require any additional support.

Flying Start childcare settings have successfully included all children with complex
needs with ongoing monitoring and reviews as well as observation assessments and did
not need the specialist provision in Caerphilly Children’s Centre.

Early Support Development Journals have been used to baseline and then track termly
every child’s progress over their year in Flying Start. They are being mapped to P-scales
used for children with ALN and more recently mapped with the new Foundation Phase
Profile which will benefit Nursery teams on transition. In addition the ISCAN early alert
system for schools two terms prior to starting nursery, has supported planning of
provision, smoother transition for children and allayed fears of families. There have been
131 early alerts during 2014-15.

Supported Places scheme has placements funded through Families First where children
have a 10 week block of additional support in a childcare setting and Play Plan targets
are put into place. This scheme is a way of supporting children in non-Flying Start areas
to also access early interventions and supports transition on to Nursery. During the last
year 80% of children on Supported Places have not needed to be referred to Education
Psychology, 63% continued to access the setting and move on to Nursery without the
need for additional support and 37% of the children were only needing toileting support
to begin Nursery.

During the academic year 2014-15 90 referrals were received for ALN observations, of
which 85 were put on the setting SEN register and had a play plan put in place. 85
children of the 489 childcare places equates to 17% of the cohort. All of the children
made progress during their placement. During the placement 28 children needed
additional support (10 for 1 hour and 18 full time) but on transition this number dropped
to 8 needed significant support or specialist provision, 15 needed reduced support (often
toileting support) and 5 no longer required any support. Therefore of the 85 children 73%
no longer needed any additional support for starting Nursery.

Flying Start have changed their approach to use Person Centred Planning in the form of
the About Me document which parents have whole heartedly embraced. Recent
developments include the workshops for parents of children with ALN, regarding
processes and how best to support their child.

Page 91



Recently the service has introduced a 6 week Join in and Play programme delivered in
the home where children are being assessed as red-red in the Welcomm assessment
tool at 18 months. This has supported families with strategies to use in the home and
enabled even earlier interventions which should further reduce the need for additional
support in the childcare settings when the child is aged 2 years old.

Parental views:

The child’s “About Me” document: “/ have always had difficulties reading and
understanding professionals report about my child. It was a lovely change to be able to
read and understand my child’s “About me” document without the need for someone to
read and it explain it to me. Can | have all reports written like that?”

Parent of a two year child attending a Flying Start Childcare Setting

The Supported Places Scheme: “Having someone to visit us at home and assess my
child’s needs prior to my daughter attending a playgroup was really helpful and
reassuring to know that she would have support and that her progress would be
monitored. We were also able to ask questions and receive immediate answers. This
also led to us finding out about benefits that we could apply for’.

Parent of a two and half year old child who will be attending a non-maintained setting

Family that have received ISCAN and Flying Start Support: We have found the support
we have received so beneficial. It is fantastic that we are able to receive advice, support
and guidance when our child was in a flying start childcare setting and when he
transitioned to school. This made the transition process easy for my son. The diagnosis
process takes so long, but it is good to know that we can still receive support and that
there is someone there we can contact. This gives us piece of mind and reduces our
anxieties.

Parents of a 4 year child who attends nursery school.

Case study:

« A non-maintained Flying Start contracted setting identified a child with possible
social communication needs in their setting as a direct result of attending an ALN
twilight training session

« The setting discussed their concerns with parents who consented to a referral for
the Flying Start ALN Advisor to observe their son in the setting

» The child was observed to have delayed speech and language skills and social
interaction/social skills difficulties. The ALN Advisor met with parents and setting
staff to discuss observation feedback

« An ISCAN referral was made and referrals were accepted for Speech Therapy
and Community Paediatrician Service

« The family engaged in a block of 6 week intervention of social skills sessions in
the home setting

« Atransition meeting was arranged by the ALN Advisor with the Flying Start
setting and school staff with parents to discuss the child’s needs and share
information — at that time the child was attending English medium school

« However the parents wished for their child to transfer to a Welsh medium school
as mother was Welsh speaking and a place had become available

Page 92



The child was also being investigated for Autistic Spectrum Disorder by the
Consultant Community Paediatrician

A transition meeting was arranged by ALN Advisor with Flying Start setting and
Welsh medium school staff with parents to discuss child’s needs and share
information

The family engaged well and took on board all the strategies and advice given to
them by the ALN Advisor. The School also used the same strategies for
consistency

The ALN Advisor undertook another observation in the Welsh medium school to
provide an updated report for the Consultant Community Paediatrician to use as
part of the information gathering process to aid the diagnosis process

The ALN Advisor report provided targets for the school to support the child’s
transition to the reception class in September 2015 when he attended full time
school.

Impact of this intervention:

There has not been the requirement for the child to have any additional support
in the early years settings and the two schools he has attended

The child has not needed to access statutory provision e.g. an Educational
Psychologist or School Advisory Teacher

The school are meeting the child’s needs without support or requiring a
statement of special educational needs

The child is making very good progress as a result of the strategies that have
been put in place

The family are fully engaged and working in partnership with all professionals
involved with their child

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94



Appendix 6 — Pathways for Provision (Flying Start, Communities First and Families

First) Flying Start
Employment Pathway Families First
Pre-employment (may be multiple Statutory/Other
engagement intervention prior) Partner

Supporting Family Change
Basic skills —IFL Essential Skills classes

Parent Network
Volunteering ~ Childcare / PIAP / PN etc

FF Pro'iects

'

v

Training/Qualifications

F

Barnados Peer Group Mentoring

v
Inspire 2 Achieve/Work (NEETS)

Employment Support

Page 1 OYG

Page 95



Integrated Family Learning

Family Child/Young Person Adult
LAP Groups and At Super Shellby & Basic Skills
Home Childcare (2 yrs)
PAFT (Home) Super Shellby in
Chatterbox (Group) Nurseries (3-4 yrs) OC

Family Learning Groups
Pop in and Play
Specialist Intervention

(Group/Home)
PETRA Project Flying Start Childcare
Placements Solihull
Parent
Nurturing
Programme

Outdoor Education

Family Lives Modules

s

| Potential Progression to Employment Pathway |

Page 2 of 6



ANTENATAL

Page 3 of 6

Nutrition Pathway

NOTIFICATION - 24 WEEKS

Healthy Baby Programme (in development)
Solihull Antenatal Programme

Healthy Start
BIRTH
Weigh and Wellbeing Weaning
Parties
Breastfeeding Support Fussy
Eaters
Less Dosh More Nosh HENRY
5 YEARS
Families
Together
Family
ADULTS

Flying Start
Families First

Communities
First

Statutory / other
partners

Healthy
Early
Years

Scheme

Foodwise The Biggest Loser  Masterchef
XPod Healthy Hearts

Page 97




Mental Health and Wellbeing Pathway

Prevention (Tier 0)

Solihull approach / common language / motivational interviewing

Flying Start
Families First
Communities
First

Statutory / other
partners

Parenting programmes — WEMBS / Adult Wellbeing
Baby Massage

Engagement groups (especially FEP)

Physical Activity group

Attachment Training (childcare sector / Healthy Early Years)

Low Level (Tier 1)

Living Life to the Full
Stress control
Self help group

Mental Health and Well being— Environmental skills project
-Walking groups (targeted)

Confident with cash
Domestic abuse projects
Schools based counselling, youth work & family projects

Development opportunities: Perinatal mental health, making every
contact count

Medium Level (Tier 2) Targeted Interventions

Perinatal Health Bespoke Caseload Package — Health Visitor
Inclusion and support

Supporting Family Change

High Level (Tier 3)

CAMHS etc

Page 98

Page 4 of 6

Supporting Family
(Lead Professional)

Change

Assessment MOIRO




Physical Activity Pathway

Flying Start
Families First
<C NOTIFICATION - 24 WEEKS
—
<ZE Statutory / other
L Healthy Baby Programme (in development) partners
—
Z
<
BIRTH
Baby Massage and Baby Fit (developing further)
Parent and Toddler Dance (Parent and Toddler
groups)
Busy Feet & Healthy Early Years (Flying Start
Childcare)
HENRY Groups
Top Tots groups
Balanced Diet of Play (to bring back)
5 YEARS
Adven Integrated
TEENAGERS J Family
Learning
Outdoor
r Education
ADULTS
NERS - Lv 4, Specialist
Page 5 of 6

Page 99



Flying Start
Families First

Risky Behaviours Pathway S

Statutory/Other

Partner
Substance Misuse Sexual health Smoking
Alcohol
Tier Hip Training _ HIP Training HIP Training
1 Health Champions Health Champions Health Champions Health Champions
Awar FS Outreach Stop Smoking
enes Sexual health Wales
S{Tr. LAC / Leaving care / Brief Intervention
aini Healthy Baby model PRU Training
n — antenatal + post
d natal (in >
development) HIP HIP
. Stop Smoking
T|2er HIP Wales
. Pharmacies
. GDAS (Over 18s) >  ABHB
T';r DAYS (Children &
Young People
Stat 9 ple)
utor

Page 6 of 6
Page 100



10} obed

Flying Start programme

Impact report

A greener place  Man gwyrddach

CAERFFILT
o



20| abed

Programme reach

Initially delivered in 10 areas reaching 1150 children aged 0-3
years and their families per year

Expansion to 26 LSOAs reaching 2533 children aged 0-3
years and their families per year

Areas are chosen using Welsh Government data ranking the
highest concentrations of children living in income benefit
households — living in the highest levels of poverty

A
A greener place  Man gwyrddach SOEREHILLY
y CAERFFILT



€0| obed

Partnership working

Flying Start programme data was chosen 2013-16 Outcome
Agreement for Education and has successfully drawn down
additional funding for the Caerphilly CBC.

Increased collaboration between Communities First,
Families First and Flying Start has developed pathways to
prevent duplication and maximise the use of funding

Flying Start outreach has prevented the need for babies to

aced on Child Protection Register at

A
A greener place  Man gwyrddach SOEREHILLY
y CAERFFILT




Early identification

347 Staff have accessed specialist training — named SENCO
In every childcare setting

90 children referred, 85 had Play Plans put in place, [17% of
children accessing Flying Start Childcare]

v0| abed

73% of those with Play Plans transitioned to Nursery without
needing support

Cas rom non-maintained provision to Welsh

school appeft

A
A greener place  Man gwyrddach SOEREHILLY
y CAERFFILT



GO abed

Future plans

Continue to focus on improving attendance

Continue to work collaboratively in partnership to maximise
resources for families

Work with Welsh Government to develop the Early Years
PLASC return and Education to further develop the shared
database

C

ective delivery plans and bids for
Ing Start programme deliver

unding to supf

A
A greener place  Man gwyrddach SOEREHILLY
y CAERFFILT



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 106



Agenda ltem 14

N
CAERPHILLY

COIINTY BOROUIGH COENCIE
CYNGOR BWRIDEISTIREF STIROL

CAERFFILY
4

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
23RD FEBRUARY 2016

SUBJECT: LANSBURY PROJECT - EDUCATION FOCUS GROUP REPORT

REPORT BY: KERI COLE, CHIEF EDUCATION OFFICER

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To inform members of the initial work focussed on improving the educational outcomes for
children, young people and families living in St James 3 (Lansbury Park area).

2, SUMMARY

2.1 The Education Focus Group was established from the Strategic Board and developed as a
response to the significant disadvantages faced by families living in Lansbury Park and the

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation [WIMD] published in 2014.

2.2 The Education Group brings together St Martin’s Comprehensive School, St James Primary
School, Communities First and Flying Start programmes to develop an action plan.

2.3 The action plan aims to improve the educational attainment of pupils from Lansbury Park as
well as the engagement in services of families.

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1 Caerphilly Anti-Poverty Strategy

3.2 Caerphilly Single Integrated Plan

3.3 Flying Start strategic programme guidance April 2012 and subsequent appendices 2012-15.

4, THE REPORT

4.1 St James 3 has been noted as the top area for deprivation in the recently released Wales
Index of Multiple Deprivation [WIMD]. The interim Chief Executive leads a strategic board to
look at what interventions are available and what could be done differently or in a more
strategic manner to make a difference for the people living in Lansbury Park. Within
Education, a small focus group has been set up to look specifically at the educational needs
of the children, young people and families.

Page 107



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.1

6.1

7.1

7.2

8.1

9.1

The Education Focus Group comprises of representatives from St Martin’s Comprehensive
School, St James Primary School, Flying Start, Communities First and is led by the Chief
Education Officer.

The targeting of individual pupils living in Lansbury Park has made a difference when ensuring
appropriate interventions are in place.

Attendance and engagement are key factors in improving attainment. The action plan focuses
on improving attendance in school and childcare settings for those children and young people
living in Lansbury Park. In addition there is a focus on providing access to aspirational
opportunities, for example, trips, music groups and other enriching experiences.

Communities First and Flying Start programmes are focusing on improving the awareness of,
and subsequently the engagement in, the range of services available locally.

St Martin’s are working with St James to pilot a new approach to supporting pupils more
intensively in Year 7 in literacy and numeracy. Although only in place since September 2015,
this is already showing an improvement in attendance and peer friendship groups, enabling
young people to adapt to the larger environment in a safer smaller group.

Both schools have recently employed Family Engagement Workers part funded through
Communities First, who have begun to work in partnership with the Flying Start Family
Support Worker. This will develop greater understanding of services available, families’
needs, and will support consistency of messages for families as well as support the co-
ordination of services for families who access multiple interventions. The Family Information
Service will support access to the database of services through developing FIS Champions
locally.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

All contracts include requirements for Equalities and Welsh Language in order to meet the
relevant legislation and this is checked within the selection process as standard practice. As
such we are impact assessing suppliers during award and selection stages of tender
processes, to ensure compliance.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Any funding implications have been identified specifically within the action plan. However,
most actions do not require additional funding but realignment of staff work plans / focus.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Joint funding of the Family Engagement Officer who is on a fixed term contract for the life of
the project.

There are no additional HR implications for this action plan.

CONSULTATIONS

All comments are included within the body of this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members note the contents of this report and the focus plan established.

Page 108



10. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1  To ensure members give due consideration to the project focus on Lansbury Park.

11. STATUTORY POWER

11.1  Children and Families Measure (Wales) 2010
Education Act 1996
School Standards Act 1998

Author: Sarah Mutch, Early Years Manager
Tel: 01443 864093
Email: mutchs@caerphilly.gov.uk
Consultees: Chris Burns, Interim Chief Executive
Councillor Wyn David, Chair Education Scrutiny Committee
Councillor Jamie Pritchard, Vice Chair Education Scrutiny Committee
Councillor Rhiannon Passmore, Cabinet Member for Education
Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer
Education Senior Management Team
Lisa Haile, Personnel Manager
David Thomas, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities and Welsh Language)
Mike Lewis, Principal Accountant — Education Central

Appendices:
Appendix 1 Lansbury Project Education Focus Plan

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 110



L 11 obed

Appendix 1 — Lansbury Project Education Focus Plan

Priority | Issue Action (& Responsibility) Resources Start/ Target Outcome Monitoring
No End Date &
Evaluation
St Martin’s Secondary School
S1 Enhanced literacy & numeracy Develop an alternative curriculum model | Staffing (Outright Sept 85%+ of learners will
provision on entry - spring board | with enhanced literacy and numeracy Project cost £35,000), | 2015/ July | be operating at Level
& not catch up to allow access provision, link with Schools Challenge as the project is an 2016 4 Ma/ Eng.
to the full KS3 Curriculum when | Cymru - Y6 Teacher. alternative rather than At least 85% of
ready. Set three lowest groups to follow 18 of additional cost. cohort will achieve
target literacy and numeracy learning. Nil Costs. NRT & NNT of 100.
(MY)
S2 The attendance of the target ‘Challenge 5’ — Target a group within the Improve individual
group significant drop when selected area with the potential to attendance by 5%.
entering KS4 — enhance increase attendance by 5%. (GE) Target 17/ 20
engagement strategies. a. School Reward (No-uniform, Vouchers £250 Sep / Dec Lecatirgsras complete
Jump the queue pass , vouchers) 2015 Target 1'5/ 20
b. Family Reward — Ice Skating Vouchers (Free) Sep 2015 learners complete
I Apr 2016 | 4tion b,
C. Community Reward — Link with | Nil Sep 2015/ Target 13/ 20
rewards scheme/ passport (communities July 2016 | |earners complete
First). action c.
S3 A very small number of students | Need to develop engagement Unknown at plan date | Nov 2015
have intense challenging programmes (Pre EOTAS provision).
behaviour which need short and | Internal Curriculum X provision and a
medium term support therapies - | selection of /2, 1 and 2 day provision —
Military Prep and CAG
S4 As a child moves through the Drop In’ sessions at existing clubs/ Nil Sep 2015/ | Engage (record) 8
education system the parental activities and community events in/ July 2016 | additional parents
link appears to move from around Lansbury. (KP) — Clinics, Y5/6 per event
informal and frequent to a more | Parents Evening
formal and infrequent approach. | Increase parent presence at St. Martin’s All relates to Target
— Gp
1. Year 6 Taster day — Parent Refreshment £100 July 2015 | 100% response to

Page 1 of 8

Afternoon Tea (KP)

invitation. 80%




21| abed

P1

There is a need for consistent
support for pupils and families to
enhance their educational
attainment

2. Year 7 Tutor Evening transport | Transport £180 Sept 2015 | attendance.
(MY)
3. Christmas Event — (Market or Resources £150 Dec 2015
Performance during Day) (KP) Transport £180
4. Host summer Saturday fun day | Resources £150
(TBC) Link with Lansbury Transport £180
Matters to establish event
5. Review parent survey feedback | Nil Sep 2015/ | Formal
and communicate responses/ July 2016 | communication with
actions within a week. (HJ) X5 stakeholders within
agreed timescale.
Parent Pods, based on the Primary Refreshments & Jan 2016/ | Create a group of 10
Clusters — Developing Parent Voice. Stationary £250 July 2016 | parents to open
(KP) with primary links X3 communication.(2
from each primary)
Output >Newsletter/
Social Media
Appoint a 'Family Link & Pastoral Funding for post 15/7/16 Family Link Officer
Support Officer' to undertake the tasks identified through employed
listed below: Communities First
Improve communication between and school Nov 2015 | Increased
school, the parents and the local —July community
community. 2016 awareness of events
in school
Engage more parents (especially those Nov 2015 | Increased number of
that have not engaged previously) in —July parents engaged in
the life of the school. 2016 activities who have
not engaged
previously
Provide / organise training Nov 2015 | Training delivered
opportunities for parents to support - July angl attended with
the development of their basic skills. 2016 80% completion rate
for courses
Liaise with other agencies in the local Nov 2015 | Good understanding

Page 2 of 8




€1 ebed

Priority | Issue Action (& Responsibility) Resources Start/ Target Outcome Monitoring
No End Date &
Evaluation
community to provide appropriate —July of all delivery
support to pupils and their families. 2016 support services /
local teams
Improve the % of attendance for Nov 2015 | % Attendance
target groups of eFSM pupils living —July increases termly for
in St James Ward 3. 2016 target eFSM pupils
To improve the behaviour of a Nov 2015
target group of pupils both in and —July
out of school. 2016
P2 There is limited after school All pupils to receive support with their Jan 2016 | To improve the
provision in the local area to home-reading - each child having a 1:1 —July academic attainment
raise aspirations and focus on session in the 'After School Club' at 2016 of a target group of
closing the gap in attainment. least once per week. eFSM pupils that live
Pupils are not able to access All pupils will have time using the on- Jan 2016 | within St James
support in the home or a line 'Bug Club' to help them improve —July Ward 3.
suitable environment to their reading - at least 15 minutes 2016
complete homework. Offering 2 | each, every time they attend the
sessions per week to pupils to 'Club'. Class Teachers will ensure
stay to complete homework, or that Bug Club books and activities are
have extra support for set up as appropriate and 'Club’ staff
schoolwork as well as other will ensure that they provide
opportunities for social appropriate support so that pupils
interaction. achieve the LI within their Bug Club.
All pupils will have at least 15 minutes Jan 2016
on Mathletics, every time they attend —July
'‘Club'. Class teachers will ensure that 2016
the activities set up for them is
appropriate in order to target their level
of need. 'Club' staff will ensure they
provide the appropriate support to help
the pupils achieve the LI within
Mathletics.
'Club’ staff to provide pupils with Jan 2016
support when completing the —July
homework that has been set by their 2016

Page 3 of 8




1| ebed

Priority | Issue Action (& Responsibility) Resources Start/ Target Outcome Monitoring
No End Date &
Evaluation

teacher, including - spellings,

mathematics and learning logs.

'Club’ staff to provide opportunities for Jan 2016

pupils to prepare for the National Tests —July

by running through a range of 2016

appropriate activities.

P3 Targeted FSM pupils are not Identify group of learners using PASS Sept 2015 | Progress and
currently able to access data, attendance data and teacher — Mar development in the
enrichment activities concern sheets using Red markers in 2016 areas of concern for

the following areas: feelings about each of the learners
school, confidence in learning, self to be carefully
regard as learner, general work ethic. tracked with a
Two groups of FSM learners in Year 5 Sep 2015 | summative
will work with the HUB Team every - July assessment (PASS)
Tuesday on Pippin's Art. 2016 carried out at the end
x2 APs (RH & NH) to support, Sep 2015 | of each project.
supervise and help evaluate - July Attendance data will
enriched activities 2016 also be used to
The group identified in Year 4 will work Sep 2015 | Mmonitor success,
with CAG every Wednesday afternoon - July where relevant.
on outdoor education activities designed 2016 Listening to ,
to build self-esteem and readiness to Learners' information
learn. will also be used
The two Year 3 classes will work with Sep 2015
Upbeat Music for 6 weeks on a —Dec
Christmas Samba drumming workshop. 2015
Year 6 classes will work weekly Nov 2015
with Creazione on health & — Dec
fitness. 2015
Year 3/4 group will work with Creazione Jan 2016
Dance after Christmas until Easter — Mar

2016

P4 Target eFSM Pupils do not have | Teaching Assistant to work with a Sep 2015 | To improve the
opportunities currently to group of 5/6 pupils each week from — Mar attendance of target
consolidate their skills in Year 5 and Year 6 (primarily eFSM 2016 groups of eFSM

Page 4 of 8




Gl | ebed

Priority | Issue Action (& Responsibility) Resources Start/ Target Outcome Monitoring
No End Date &
Evaluation
practical real life experiences pupils') to run the school's BISTRO. pupils
Pupils will have the opportunity to engage Sep 2015 | To provide pupils'
in a wide range of activities that includes — Mar with the opportunity
Literacy, Numeracy, ICT and PSD skills. 2016 of applying their
They will also have the opportunity to literacy and numeracy
develop their creative thinking, problems and personal social
solving and entrepreneurial skills. skills in a practical,
relevant and engaging
context.
Pupils to be assessed for their 'Level 3 Sep 2015 | Provide pupils' with
Food Counter Service' vocational award — Mar the opportunity of
before the end of the year. 2016 gaining a vocational
qualification - Level 3
in 'Food Counter
Service'.
P5 Targeted eFSM pupils do not All pupils in Year 5 and Year 6 to Sep 2015 | Toimprove the
have access to fitness sessions | take part in a fitness assessment at — Mar standards of fitness
which would support their health | CREAZIONE Fitness Centre. 2016 of all eFSM pupils in
and wellbeing. Following that the pupils will take part Year 5 and Year 6.
in a programme of fitness sessions
(1hr per week for 8 weeks). After
these sessions, all pupils will be re-
assessed to measure the
improvement in their fitness.
Dosbarth Raglan - Autumn Term
Dosbarth Caerdydd - Spring Term
All pupils in Year 5 and Year 6 to take Sep 2015 | Toimprove the
part in a 'Health and Wellbeing' — Mar opportunities for
session at CREAZIONE Fitness 2016 taking part in

Centre, to include: Healthy Eating;
Hygiene; Anatomy; Healthy Exercise;
Life Choices.

Pupils will keep a record of all

the work they do. Dosbarth

physical activity of all
eFSM pupils in Year 5
and Year 6.

Page 5 of 8




91| ebed

Priority | Issue Action (& Responsibility) Resources Start/ Target Outcome Monitoring
No End Date &
Evaluation

Raglan - Autumn Term

Dosbarth Caerdydd - Spring Term

All pupils in Year 5 and Year 6 will Sep 2015 | To improve the

have the opportunity to take part in an — Mar knowledge and

'After-School Fitness Club' during the 2016 understanding of

term that they are taking part in the 'healthy lifestyles' of

Fitness Project (Raglan - Autumn Term all eFSM pupils in

& Caerdydd - Spring Term) to help Year 5 and Year 6.

them improve their fitness levels and

promote participation enjoyment.

An awareness raising session will be Sep 2015

held for all the parents of those pupils — Mar

taking part in the 'Fitness Project' to 2016

make them aware of what the school is

aiming to achieve and how they can

support their children at home.

Raglan Parents - before the 1st session in

the Autumn Term

Caerdydd Parents - before the 1st session in

the Spring Term

Parent session to be held part-way Sep 2015

through the project (to be held at Eol\fgr

CREAZION Fitness Centre). The
parents of those pupils taking part in
the project that term will visit
Creazione, where they will find out
more about what their children have
been learning about, be given support
materials to take away with them and
take part in a fithess session
themselves.

All parents will then be given an
incentive to take part in physical activity
themselves (access to free fitness
sessions at the Centre) in order to

Page 6 of 8




/1| abed

Priority | Issue Action (& Responsibility) Resources Start/ Target Outcome Monitoring
No End Date &
Evaluation
encourage their children to continue
taking part in fitness related activity once
the project has come to an end.
Community Provision — Flying Start and Communities First programmes
C1 There is a lack of engagement There is the potential to provide créche Flying Start créche Mar 2016 | Improved parental
of families in school parents if needed and there is sufficient capacity attendance at
evening especially at St Martins | within the team, to enable parents to parents evening
attend parents evening Créche available for
booking
Cc2 There is a lack of awareness of | Schools and community staff nominate Staff time Mar 2016 | FIS Champions are
support available to families individuals to become Family developed locally
Information Service (FIS) Champions to Professionals and
empower families and professionals to families are more
find out services available to meet family aware how to find
needs identified. out what support and
activities are
available
C3 There are assumed but not yet Communities First work with Dynamix Communities First Survey results
identified barriers to and a group of young people to funding Dynamix and identify the barriers
engagement in school and undertake a survey in their community officer time to engagement
community provision regarding establishing their barriers to
engagement
C4 Communities First has a local Communities First
engagement plan which will be
referenced and updated through the
Education plan
C5 There are many groups running | Health, Childcare, Pop in and Play Flying Start Mar 2016 | Increased take up
in St James ICC but sometimes | group and Parent Forum to promote Childcare, Health, from local families in
a lack of awareness/take up verbally and in newsletters, the other Play staff and parent groups running in St
within the community family groups and programmes running | volunteers time James ICC
in the ICC.
Awareness raising activities promote the | Flying Start Officer Mar 2016
services available through other relevant | time to organise
community groups. events
Increase attendance at the Weigh and Flying Start Health Mar 2016

Page 7 of 8




81| ebed

Wellbeing and Baby Cafe groups, via staff time

promotion with health visitors

Link with midwifery to increase referrals | Midwifery and Mar 2016
to antenatal programme Parenting staff time

Improve attendance in childcare Childcare staff and Aug 2016
sessions through working closely with parents

parents

Embed early identification of additional Childcare staff Aug 2016
needs in the childcare setting to improve

information for Education for transition

Deliver parenting programmes termly Family Support team | Aug 2016

from St James ICC and increase the
number of bespoke individual packages
in the home

Page 8 of 8




	Agenda
	3 Special Education for Life Scrutiny Committee held on the 15th December 2015 (min nos. 1-6).
	4 Education for Life Scrutiny Committee held on 12th January 2016 (min nos. 1-12).
	8 Communities First Pupil Deprivation Grant Match Fund Projects - Youth Workers in Schools and Family Support Project (Joint Working between Communities First and Schools) Report and Presentation.
	St Martin's Presentation

	9 Consultation - Proposed Admission Arrangements 2017/2018.
	Consultation - Proposed Admission Arrangements 2017-2018 Appendix 1

	10 Education Capital 2016/17.
	11 Key Stage 4 / Key Stage 5 Performance 2015.
	Key Stage 4 - Key Stage 5 Performance 2015 Appendix A

	12 Flying Start Programme Impact Report and Presentation.
	Flying Start Programme Impact Report  Appendix 1
	Flying Start Programme Impact Report  Appendix 2
	Flying Start Programme Impact Report  Appendix 3
	Flying Start Programme Impact Report  Appendix 4
	Flying Start Programme Impact Report  Appendix 5
	Flying Start Programme Impact Report  Appendix 6
	Flying Start Programme Impact Report  Appendix

	14 Lansbury Project - Education Focus Group Report.
	Lansbury Project Œ Education Focus Group Report Appendix 1


